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Narrative Report

Introduction

Mid Ulster District Council's (Council’s) financial performance for the year ended 31st
March 2022 is as set out in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow

Statement.

These financiai statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March
2022 (the Code) and the Department for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular

LG 02/22.

It is the purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the
financial facts in relation to Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Council's finances during the financial year
2021/22 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows approved
accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Narrative Report is to provide information on Council, its main
objectives and strategies and the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a
full set of group financial statements where they have material interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. The Council does not have material
interests in such bodies and accordingly is not required to prepare group financial

statements.
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 40, shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from taxation (district Rates). Authorities raise
taxation (district Rates) to fund expenditure in accordance with Regulations; this may
be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 41, shows the movement in the year on the
different reserves held by Council, analysed into “usable reserves” (i.e., those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation (District Rates)) and
other reserves. The “Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services” line shows the
true economic cost of providing Council's services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary (CIES). These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund
Balance for District Rate setting purposes. The “Net increase/ (decrease) before
transfers to Statutory and Other Reserves” line shows the statutory General Fund



Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reserves
undertaken by Council.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 42, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet
date of Council's assets and liabilities. Council's net assets (assets less liabilities)
are matched by the reserves held by Council. Reserves are reported in two
categories. The first category of reserves is “usable reserves’, i.e., those reserves
that Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipts Reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The
second category of reserves is those that Council is not able to use to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line “Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations”.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement, as set out on page 43, shows the changes in Council’s
cash and cash equivalents during the reporting period. The statement shows how
Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which Council’s operations
are funded by way of taxation (district Rates) and grant income or directly from the
recipients of Council’s services. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to
Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.,
borrowing) to Council.

Performance Report

Council delivered a strong financial performance in 2021/22, which resulted in it
increasing its General Fund reserve by £536,934 (2020/21 £524,210) to £6,899,918

(2020/21 £6,362,984).

By striking its 2021/22 District Rate in February 2021, Council established a budget
of £47,456,366 (2020/21 £45,999,245) to fund its estimated 2021/22 net cost of
Council services, its increasing capital programme and maintain a prudent level of
reserves. The budget was based on a range of assumptions, which included
Council's estimate of Rate Support Grant (RSG) receivable in 2021/22.

Council's actual financial outturn relative to the net cost of services budget set when
Council strikes its District Rate is impacted by factors such as the extent to which:

o Controllable financial costs are successfully managed,;
¢ Income, including government grant income, targets are achieved,;



¢ Uncontroltable or unforeseen events have a financial impact on Council;

» There is a material financial consequence of Council deviating, for whatever
reason, from its operational plans and/or capital programme; and

e Adjustments between an accounting and a funding basis are made when
presenting performance

Had Council's financial performance in 2021/22 mirrored its budget expectations,
Council would have increased its reserves by approximately £2,500,000. However,
as a result of several factors including:

+ The Covid-19 pandemic’s impact on the delivery of Council services and
associated income streams, and the Northern Ireland Executive’s and the
Council's response thereto;

e Successful in-year revenue and capital programme budget management;

» Positive in-year de-rating grant finalisation; and
Receiving RSG significantly in excess of the amount budgeted for

the Council's financial outturn was materially different from that expected when the
2021/22 budgets were set.

As a result of the above, the Council's General Fund increased by £536,934 and the
Council’'s capital reserves decreased by £4,500,000 following a transfer to reserves
from the General Fund of £10,500,000 and a subsequent transfer of £15,000,000
from the Capital Fund to the Capital Adjustment Account to fund previously incurred
capital expenditure. The Council’s revenue reserves also increased by £646,795,
being the net of a transfer of £4,029,148 into reserves and a transfer of £3,382,353
out of reserves.

Of the £4,029,148 transferred into revenue reserves, £1,029,148 represented funds
advanced to the Council prior to 31st March 2022 by the Department for
Communities (DfC) in respect of Covid-19 support, which had not been expended at
31 March 2022. The balance of £3,000,000 includes amounts included within the
Council’'s Rates estimates to fund the Council's Mid South West Growth Deal, future
capital commitments and activities authorised by the Council’s statutory General
Power of Competence.

In total, the DfC provided the Council with £12,402,564 of specific Covid-19 financial
support during the two years ended 31st March 2022. The amount of Covid-19
funding unapplied at 31st March 2021 was £4,733,265. £3,152,653 of this unapplied
amount was expended during 2021/22 with the balance of £1,580,612 and
£1,029,148 received during 2021/22 being retained in reserves at the year-end on
the DfC’s instruction. The DfC instruction is reflected in the annual Accounts
Direction and is intended to secure the relevant funding for application as
appropriate in 2022/23.

The DfC also provided the Council with additional Active Travel funding during
2020/21 in the amount of £499,000 that was intended to fund capital expenditure in
2021/22. Of this funding £45,785 was applied during 2021/22.



in 2021/22 the Council also received lesser amounts of Covid-19 financial support
from the Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs and was able to
avail of a limited amount of HM Treasury support via the Job Retention Scheme.
Both these income streams also contributed towards the Council’s 2021/22 financial

outturn.

The 2021/22 General Fund increase in the amount of £536,934 (2020/21 £524,210)
and movements between the Capital Fund and the Capital Adjustment Account
results in the General Fund balance of £6,899,918 (2020/21 £6,362,984)
representing 15.8% (2020/21 13.60%) of Council’s total usable reserves of
£43,535,102 (2020/21 £46,797,664). Despite the absence of formal Department for
Communities (DfC) guidance in relation to what level of financial reserves district
councils should maintain, the Council is satisfied that it continues to satisfy its
statutory duty to maintain adequate reserves.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Note 2 to Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 provides an
expenditure and funding analysis, which seeks to demonstrate how the funding
available to Council has been used in providing services in comparison with the
resources consumed or eamed by Council in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. This analysis also shows how the expenditure is allocated for
decision making purposes between Council’s directorates. Income and expenditure
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

In delivering its financial outturn, which results in Council increasing its General Fund
in the amount of £536,934 (2020/21: £524,210), most of the Council’s financial
resources were expended by the Communities & Place and Environment
directorates. These directorates were formed when the Council restructured its
operational activities in July 2021; although their areas of responsibility were slightly
different to the previous Environment & Property and Leisure and Outdoor
Recreation directorates, they include the former directorates’ major areas of
operational expenditure.

The Environment directorate has subsumed the activities of the former Environment
& Property which was responsible for public facing services such as refuse collection
and waste disposal, including trade/commercial waste disposal and internal services
including maintenance of Council properties and vehicles. The Communities and
Place directorate has subsumed the activities of the former Leisure & Outdoor
Recreation directorate which included the provision of all leisure and recreational
facilities, including leisure centres, play parks, parks and open spaces. Operational
activities also included within the new directorates include Building Controf, Capital
Scheme delivery, Community Services, and Arts and Cultural activities.

In total, these two directorates expended £42,315,870 (2020/21: £40,110,080) of
Council's funds, being £17,872,655 and £24,443,215 (2020/21: £16,623,808 and
£23,486,272) respectively. The aggregate expenditure represents 82.1% (2020/21:
105.56% of Council’'s “Net cost of Services”).



The “adjustments between the funding and accounting basis” detailed in note 2 have
been explained above.

In delivering its financial outturn, Council made net transfers from its General Fund to
Statutory and Other Reserves in the amount of £11,146,795 (2020/21:
£18,855,001). These transfers, together with amounts transferred in prior years, are
intended to contribute towards the funding of Council’s capital programme, match
funding received for specific purposes with expenditure yet to be incurred and
provide funding for future revenue projects.

Capital expenditure during the year amounted to £6,897,965 (2020/21: £7,123,229),
the expenditure being on vehicles, plant and equipment £1,845,144 (2020/21:
£871,312), assets under construction £4,165,820 (2020/21: £5,208,121), buildings
£722,759 (2020/21: £1,011,467), infrastructure assets £164,242 (2020/21: £32,329)
and land £nil (2020/21: £nil).

As explained above, Council performed within budget for the year ended 31 March
2021. Prudent financial management has enabled Council to, in so far as
reasonably practicable, accurately plan and adequately resource its capital and local
economic development strategies. In addition, Council was again unable to commit
match funding to several projects in advance of the primary funders issuing Letters
of Offer and/or expenditure being incurred in the current financial year. However, as
explained above, Council has sought to reserve sufficient funding to satisfy
postponed commitments which will arise either when the primary funders issue
Letters of Offer or when expenditure is incurred.

Council was again, when striking its District Rate for 2021/22 in February 2021,
frustrated by the uncertainty in relation to the quantum of Rate Support Grant (RSG)
that eligible councils could expect to receive in the year for which the District Rate is
being struck, i.e., 2021/22. This uncertainty is caused by the fact that, unlike De-
rating grant, RSG is not statutorily protected. Council, together with other district
councils eligible to receive RSG, continues to press the DfC and the NI Assembly to
satisfactorily resolve the matter once and for all by amending the relevant legislation
to statutorily protect this essential financial subvention.

Unfortunately, although Council, as a result of successfully challenging the DfC
method of distributing the total amount of RSG available for distribution between
eligible councils in the Court of Appeal, which issued its judgment in September
2018, increased its percentage share of the total amount of RSG allocated by the
DfC from its annual budget for distribution between eligible councils from 16.24% to
24.74% in 2018/19, and subsequently to 24.93% in 2019/20, in 2020/21 the
Council’s share of the aggregate RSG available for distribution between eligible
district councils reduced to approximately 21%. This is a significant reduction, which
the DfC have advised has arisen due to regional fluctuations in property rateable
valuations arising on foot of the non-domestic revaluation undertaken by Land and
Property Services effective 15t April 2020 (Reval 2020).

The effect of the Reval 2020 (as advised by the DfC) was to dramatically reduce the
Council's share of the aggregate RSG (criginally £15.865 million). However, due to



the DfC ultimately increasing the aggregate RSG available for distribution to
£21,924,000, the Council received £4,600,657 RSG. This was £1,197,614 more
RSG than it had budgeted to receive. This additional RSG allocation contributed to
the £11,146,795 transferred to reserves (£646,795 and £10,500,000 to revenue and
capital reserves respectively) because the DfC instructed that the additional amount
be held in reserves.

The combined effect of uncertainty at the time when Council was preparing its
2021/22 District Rate estimates in relation to:

« The absolute quantum of RSG that would be distributed between eligible

councils in 2021/22; and
s Council’s in-year percentage share of the total RSG available for distribution,

resulted in the Council budgeting to receive RSG in the amount of £3,403,043 in
2021/22 (the original 2021/22 allocation was £2,502,200). As the amount ultimately
received was £4,600,657 (2020/21: £4,741,167), Council received £1,197,614 more
RSG than budgeted.

Apart from capital expenditure detailed above, Council did not acquire any material
assets in 2021/22.

Organisational overview and external environment

Council is one of eleven district councils created by statute in Northern ireland to
deliver local government services. It assumed responsibility for the delivery of local
government services on 1 April 2015 when it replaced the former district councils of
Cookstown and Magherafelt District Council and Dungannon and South Tyrone
Borough Council.

Council consists of 40 elected Members who, as a body corporate, have delegated
authority to the Chief Executive, who is also Council's Chief Financial Officer, to
manage Council staff and its financial and other resources to deliver Council’s
statutory and other services in accordance with Council’s statutory authority and
declared corporate objectives.

Local government elections took place on Thursday, 2 May 2019,

Governance

Council operates a Committee structure and is served by five Committees:

Audit Committee;

Development Committee;
Environment Committee;
Planning Committee; and

Policy and Resources Committee



The responsibilities and remit of each Committee is detailed in Council’s
Constitution, which may be accessed on Council's website, https:/mid-ulster.cmis-
ni.org/midulster/ConstitutionStandingOrder.aspx

Each Committee consists of 16 Members, with the exception of Audit Committee,
which has 8 elected Members and 1 independent Member. Committees make
recommendations to Council; it is Council which generally makes decisions by
resolution with voting being by show of hands.

Council and Committee Chair and Vice Chair positions are filled annuailly at
Council's Annual General Meeting by D’hondt, which is a mechanism intended to
ensure that positions of authority are distributed among Members according to
electoral strength.

Council’s Chair and Vice Chair from May 2021 were Councillor McLean, DUP and
Councillor McFlynn, SDLP. From April 2021 up until the election date the Council’s
Chair and Vice Chair were Councillor Mailaghan, Sein Féin and Councillor Graham,

DUP.

Council generally meets once monthly, but these meetings are occasionally
augmented by additional "special” Council meetings to conduct business not
normally included on the monthly agenda, e.g. to strike the District Rate in February
of each year. Committees generally meet once monthly except for July, in which
typically only Audit Committee meets. However, the continuing Covid-12 pandemic
disrupted the normal schedule of Committee meetings. Notwithstanding the effects
of the pandemic, the Audit Committee met 4 times during 2021/22.

The annual accounts include an Annual Governance Statement (AGS), which is
considered by Audit Committee prior to recommendation to Council that it be
adopted and included within its accounts. The AGS is in the format prescribed by
the Department for Communities and issued with its annual Accounts Direction.

Operational Model

Council’s basic operational model reflects the following:

+ Administrative presence
o Council office in each of Cookstown, Dungannon and Magherafelt
towns
¢ Primary leisure facilities
o “Wet” leisure centres:
= Cookstown Leisure Centre
» Dungannon Leisure Centre
=  Greenvale Leisure Centre (Magherafelt)
o “Dry” leisure centres:
= Gortgonis Recreation Centre
=  Maghera Leisure Centre
=  Meadowbank Sports Arena



= Mid Ulster Sports Arena
=  Moneymore Recreation Centre
e Key statutory services provided
o Refuse collection — domestic and trade/commercial
o Waste disposal
o Planning
o Key regulatory services provided
o Building Control
o Environmental Health
o Registration of Births, Deaths and Marriages

Risks and opportunities

Council manages and delivers its portfolio of services using the principles of risk
management. Council actively challenges its officers to consider the potential for
risk and to document same, together with potential impact on Council, both financial
and otherwise. Risks are recorded in service risk registers and the most significant
risks are documented in a Corporate Risk Register, which is routinely reviewed by
Audit Committee.

Council faces a number of significant risks, which include the:

¢ Continued uncertainty regarding the security and quantum of Rate Support
Grant, which represents approximately 7% of Council's net cost of operation
and any reduction thereto will impact directly on Council's District Rate, which
is borne by rate payers;

¢ Need to develop and implement adequate and robust governance
arrangements that will be effective in all future partnerships, whether strategic
such as the Mid South West Growth Deal or operational;

« Impacts of the continuing global pandemic, e.g., in relation to future fuel and
energy costs, and inflationary capital pressures; and

¢ Continuing tight labour market.

Council's assessment of its risk environment is more fully discussed in its AGS,
which is included at page 11 of the accounts.

Strategy and resource allocation

As reported in 2018/19 Council had a formal Corporate Plan which covered the
period 2015 to 2019. The Corporate Plan was reviewed during 2017/18 and a
revised plan for the period 2020 to 2024 was adopted by Council in March 2020.
The new plan was assessed in the context of the post pandemic world in so far as
practicable and found to remain valid, subject to minor amendment. However, the



plan has yet to be formally reviewed in the context of the continuing global economic
crisis. The current plan may be found on the Council’s website, which is
www.midulstercouncil.org.

Council has also led in the development and delivery of a Community Plan, Local
Economic Development Plan, both of which have been published and a Local Area
Development Plan (LDP), and is currently consulting on a Preferred Options Paper in
relation to the LDP.

Outlook

Council continues to budget to deliver it's statutory and other services at as low a
cost as possible to the rate payer. Budgets are prepared to support the striking of
the District Rate in February of each year.

Significant recurrent financial pressures include potential reductions to RSG,
increased costs of waste management, payroll related costs including national
insurance and superannuation changes, and the wider effects of the global economic

crisis notably in relation to fuel and energy costs.

Basis of preparation

Council prepares its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the
Code of Accounting for Local Authorities in the United Kingdom and the Accounts
Direction issued under statute by the Department for Communities.

The accounts are audited by the Local Government Auditor, Mrs Colette Kane, who
is a Director within the Northern Ireland Audit Office.



Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for
the Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a
council shall make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs.
A council shall designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and
these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of its chief financial

officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, is required by resolution, to
approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Chief Executive on 14th July 2022.
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation
of the Council's Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for

Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash
flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial
year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

* observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities
including compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom;

o follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis; and

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:

« keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date; and
e take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

10



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

Mid Ulster District Council (MUDC / Council) is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively.

MUDC also has a duty under Local Government (Best Value) Act (Northern Ireland)
2002 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and

effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, MUDC is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

MUDC is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent
with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) /SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.
A copy of the Code is on our website. This statement explains how MUDC meets
the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the publication of a statement on

internal control.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The govermance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and
values, by which the local government body is directed and controlled and its activities
through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables
MUDC to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether
those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the
local government body’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at MUDC for the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

11



The Governance Framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise MUDC's governance
arrangements include arrangements for:

identifying and communicating MUDC's vision of its purpose and
intended outcomes for citizens and service users

The Council agreed a new Corporate Plan in March 2020, which confirmed its
vision, refreshed its values and set out its strategic direction for the period
2020-24.

That Plan remains in place, with all cascading departmental strategies and
service plans supporting the achievement of the Council's strategic priorities
and through them, the Council's vision which is to be ‘at the heart of our

community’.

reviewing MUDC's vision and its implications for Council’s governance
arrangements

As the pandemic continued in 2021/22, so too did the Council's focus on
responding to emerging Covid-19 issues and restrictions as they directly
affected service delivery, while also ensuring that plans were in place to
address the wider economic and social impact for the region as a whole, and
to support recovery both internally and externally.

In its response and recovery work, the Council has continued to demonstrate
its vision and its values in practice across its range of responsibilities. This
was particularly the case with regard to a very clear customer and citizen
focus in its decision-making around services and the continued allocation of
resources where they were most needed (for example in tackling food and
fuel poverty) and in the delivery of bespoke funding programmes (business
support grants, marketing grants).

Continuing to operate in a virtual world, the Council's digital platforms,
specifically its social media channels, were once again critical to ensuring that
the Council's approach was widely communicated and once again, 2021/22
saw these channels develop yet further as key points of customer contact,
feedback and engagement.

Capital investment schemes, demonstrating the Council's commitment to the
growth and development of the district as a whole, also continued during the
year. They were supported by comprehensive and integrated communications
plans to strategically position and profile capital works, helping to ensure that
the Council’s core growth and investment narrative was consistent and clear,
reflecting both its values and its strategic direction and positioning the
organisation as one which is very much working to be ‘at the heart of our

community’.

12



measuring the quality of services for users through the Citizen
Satisfaction Survey, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with
Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of
resources

The Council strives to operate in an efficient, effective, economic and ethical
manner. It has established and continues to embed arrangements to secure
continuous improvements across its services with legislative requirements
placed under Part 12 of the Local Government Act (NI) 2014. The Council’s
Performance Management Framework has targets in place to meet statutory
requirements and identified other measures under a Service improvement
Plan to increase efficiencies.

NIAO undertook its 2020/21 Improvement Audit and Assessment in line with
Local Government Act (NI) 2014 part 12, section 93. The report and
associated certificate declares whether the Council had acted in accordance
with the legislation and guidance, and also clarifies whether or not there were
any statutory recommendations or special inspections required.

The external performance improvement audit undertaken by NIAO/Local

Govt. Auditor in early 2022 provided no statutory recommendations, nor a
requirement for a special inspection to be carried on Council. One area for
improvement was identified by NIAO which has been reviewed and action

taken by relevant officers.

The Council’s existing performance improvement arrangements include the
setting and delivery of Corporate Improvement Objectives (CIO), as a means
of contributing to and meeting its statutory obligations. This was
complemented by 10 statutory and corporate performance indicators and 18
Corporate Health measures. Each objective, along with associated actions
plans, have been compiled to bring about enhanced customer satisfaction in
the services delivered by the Council in delivering outcomes for citizens.
Council departments and relevant services contribute to the achievement of
the four ClOs which are also documented and reflected within Project plans
alongside functional Service Plans, where the service is making a contribution
to one or more of the Corporate Improvement Objectives. The performance
improvement regime requires Council to put arrangements in place to secure
continuous improvement to deliver outcomes for citizens/residents.

The Council has a Customer Services Policy which includes a common
process for managing complaints across the organisation. There is ongoing
review and evaluation of services as part of routine work to obtain and act on
customer feedback to ensure service delivery is meeting customer needs and
expectations.

13



defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the
executive, non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear
delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication

Council operates a traditional committee system of governance whereby
matters are discussed at commitiees and recommendations are made to
Council for approval, unless the matter has been specifically delegated to that
committee(s) to make the ultimate decision. Arrangements are documented
within (i) Scheme of Delegation for Senior Officers; (i) Terms of Reference for
Committees; (iii) Standing Orders; (iv) Constitution of council.

developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining
the standards of behaviour for members and staff

All members are bound by the Code of Conduct for Councillors as published
by the then Dept. for the Environment (now DfC). Every member has signed
the Declaration of Councillor to confirm that they have read and will follow it,
as required under the 1972 Local Government Act. Learning on the Code has
been previously scheduled by Council and through NILGA for all Counciliors.

reviewing the effectiveness of MUDC's decision-making framework,
including delegation arrangements, decision making in partnerships and
robustness of data quality

The Council's Constitution is periodically updated to reflect emerging changes
in priorities and governance. For example, the Scheme of Delegation for
Senior Officers was reviewed for continuing relevance and to reflect the new
senior staff restructure in Dec 2021. At the start of each Council mandate,
members consider the form of governance/decision making to be taken over

the incoming 4-year mandate.

reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and
managing risks and demonstrating clear accountability

Council has a Risk Management Framework in place whereby Council
Services contribute towards a centrally maintained Corporate Risk Register
(CRR), which was monitored reviewed by Senior Management and the Audit
Committee, with mitigating actions / controls put in place to manage the risk.

The Risk Management Policy is reviewed periodically by the Audit Committee,
following brainstorming workshops with Senior Management.

Refresher training was provided to Assistant Directors (AD) & Head of
Services (HoS) in Oct 2021 on risk management, internal controls and

governance.

Each service records their risks on a database which are managed by risk
champions (owners) and are reviewed on a systematic basis with the Internal
Audit Manager with action plans in place to mitigate the risks materialising.
The Internal Audit Manager oversees the process and informs the Senior
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Management on movement within the service risks for consideration onto the
CRR.

ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are
developed and maintained

MUDC is committed to ensuring that the people of the district have complete
confidence that the affairs of the Council are conducted in accordance with the
highest standards of probity and accountability. The Council has developed
policies on anti-fraud / bribery / corruption for employees as well as a Raising
Concerns / Whistleblowing policy for employees and the public.

Council reviews the Anti-Fraud, Bribery / Corruption and Raising Concerns
Policy periodically and considers guidance from the NIAO.

Any suspected or attempted fraudulent activities are investigated and reported
to the NIAO and other appropriate channels. There was one suspected fraud
attempt in planning which is being investigated and reported to the NIAO.

The risk of fraud is considered during audit assignments when reviewing the
control environment. Each service considers the risk of fraud and is reflected

on their risk registers if deemed appropriate.

ensuring effective management of change and transformation

As part of the senior staff restructure, Council has recognised ‘transformation’
is a corer stone for driving continual improvement. This has been recognised
within our new senior staff structure. The Director of Organisation
Development, Strategy & Performance is the Senior Responsible Officer
(SRO) of the council re-organisation project and is managing this change
across the Council.

ensuring MUDC's financial management arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) and, where they do
not, explain why and how they deliver the same impact

The Council has designated the Chief Executive as the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO). The CIPFA Statement on The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government (the Statement) sets out five principles that define the core
activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the Chief Financial Officer
in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements needed

to support them.

Principle 5 requires the CFO to be professionally qualified and be a member
of an accountancy body. Local Regulations in Northern Ireland do not require
the CFO to be a professionally qualified accountant nor for the role to be
separated from that of the Chief Executive. The Council is satisfied that the
Chief Executive is suitably qualified and adequately supported by the
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Strategic Director of Corporate Services / Finance (SD — Corporate Services
& Finance) who is a fully qualified Accountant.

ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

Each Director, Assistant Director and Head of Service is responsible for
ensuring compliance with relevant laws, regulations, internal policies and
procedures and provides a bi-annual and an annual Assurance Statement to
the Chief Executive.

The Council also has access to advice from a range of sources, including
legal advice from the Council's Solicitor.

The Council's internal audit function has a specific role in providing
independent assurance to Management and the elecied Members on the
internal control, risk management and governance arrangements of Council.

All officers and elected members are required to act in compliance with their
respective Codes of Conduct while carrying out their duties and to declare any

conflicts of interests.

There continues to be different legislation and provision in relation to actions
to be followed in the event that a Council anticipated having financial
difficulties e.g., solvency but if amendment of legislation to ensure consistency
between two jurisdictions (NI & GB), it would not significantly reduce the
potential for councils to experience financial difficulty. Controls in relation to
this are best implemented at a local level having regard to the prudential code
and other statutory guidance.

ensuring MUDC’s assurance arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the
Head of Internal Audit (2010) and, where they do not, explain why and
how they deliver the same impact

The role referred to by CIPFA as the Head of Internal Audit has an important
role in delivering the organisation’s strategic aims by championing best
practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of governance
and management of existing risks, commenting on responses to emerging
risks and proposed developments; and giving an objective and evidence-
based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal
control.

The Internal Audit Manager fulfils the role of the "Head of Internal Audit’ in

accordance with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement. The
Service is managed by the Internal Audit Manager and is co-resourced by an
external audit firm to support the service. The Internal Audit service operates
in compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which

came into effect from April 2013.
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An external 5-year peer review was completed in 2020/21 on the co-sourcing
firm which was satisfactory and in line with the PSIAS.

Annual self-assessments are completed by the Internal Audit Manager and
were effective.

ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the
monitoring officer function

The legislation governing Northern Ireland district councils does not require a
Monitoring officer as required under Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989. MUDC operate a Committee Based System for decision
making and does not have executive arrangements.

ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the
head of paid service function

The Chief Executive fulfils this role as Head of Paid Service and there are
effective governance arrangements in place to discharge the function.

undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in
CIPFA’s Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

The Audit Committee comprises of eight Members of Council appointed using
the Quota of Greatest Remainder (QGR) as provisioned for within Schedule 2
of the Local Government (NI) Act 2014. The Committee also has an
independent Member. The Audit Committee operates in compliance with the
CIPFA Audit Committee guidance issued in 2013/2018 and undertakes an
annual review of its effectiveness and performance which was deemed as
effective during 2021/22, this informs the Annual Report from the Chair of the
Committee. Treasury Management training was provided to Members in
December 2021.

The Committee (who have a terms of reference) meet quarterly, and an
Independent Member attends all the meetings as well as representatives from
external audit.

whistleblowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the
public

The Council has a raising concern / whistle blowing policy designed for
employees to raise concerns in the knowledge that they will be protected by
the safeguards of the policy. Any public concerns are also addressed through
the elected Members who bring the issues to Council for review. The policy is
maintained on the Council intranet and was last updated in November 2020.

The Council has a Customer Services Policy which includes a process for
managing corporate complaints across the organisation.
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identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

A training needs assessment was previously undertaken of all Members and
training is subsequently scheduled and targeted at member based on
requirements and any emerging priorities. Council holds the Elected Member

Development Charter.

Emanating from the senior staff restructure consideration is being given to the
commencement of a leadership development programme to be cascaded
down the organisation on a tier-by-tier approach.

establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation

The Council remains committed to openness and transparency in its
communications and its community engagement and consultation.

An integrated mix of communication channels is used which recognises that
different customers and citizens will have different needs and preferences and
the Council's approach must be inclusive to reflect this.

The Council embraces an ‘omni-channel’ concept, where every channei used
is seamlessly connected visually, verbally, and virtually. This ensures that
whether we are working across our web site and social media sites, print, out
of home or in direct marketing, our positioning and messaging is clear and
consistent.

Key communication channels and engagement methods include:

+ Direct engagement via meetings with specific interest groups (e.g.
chambers of trade, local businesses),

s Market research (surveys, informal feedback, data analysis) to inform
service design and delivery;

» Specific consultation exercises on significant schemes and projects (e.g.
public realm schemes, major capital programmes); and

¢ A mix of communication channels, including advertising (press, outdoor,
social, the use of key digital channels (web and social media), targeted
digital communication (e.g., ezines) and ensuring local interest stories are
carried in the local press.

Naturally, just as in the previous year, the on-going pandemic, opportunities to
communicate and engage with local residents and stakeholders in face-to-
face settings have been greatly reduced. However, the Council and its
services have continued to respond with agility and innovation in using virtual
methods and digital channels to ensure that as much engagement and
communication activity continued throughout the challenges of the 2021/22

year.

The Council has a Consultation Framework which sets out the principles of
sound consultation practice and advises on best practice consultation
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procedures and processes to achieve meaningful engagement and
associated outcomes. Consultation outcomes are also reported publicly to
ensure that those who provided feedback and input know that their views
have been heard and understand how they have shaped a final cutcome.

The Council also has an Accessible Communications Policy which seeks to
ensure all communications are accessible to a broad range of people and
includes a commitment to providing information in alternative formats

enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of
other public service providers

The Council's scope and span of control over ‘other public service providers’
is limited to an advocacy and lobbying role in the most part. Through the year
the Council sought and received deputations at Council from Dfl Roads,
Housing Executive, NI Water and the Northern and Southern Health & Social
Care Trusts. Officials were questioned on matters relevant to the Mid Ulster

district and follow ups made.

incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships
and other joint working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report
on the governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in MUDC's
overall governance arrangements

The decision-making framework and scheme of delegation are contained
within the Constitution and are updated as and when required.

The Council continuously strives to have the highest standards of governance
arrangements in place and endeavours to ensure that its partners also have
the same arrangements in place. The Council reviewed the Local Code of

Governance for appropriateness.

A collaboration between Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough
Council, Fermanagh and Omagh District Council, and Mid Ulster District
Council; Mid South West (MSW) is responsible for delivering a Regional
Economic Strategy that focuses on boosting productivity, driving business
growth, promoting sectoral strengths, and creating more and better-paid jobs
across the region via Growth Deals. The Council has established a MSW
Region Governance Steering Group which contains representation of 12
Councillors (4 Councillors from each of the 3 Councils), iogether with the 3
CEOs and 3 Directors from each Council and senior MSW Staff. There are 3
working officer working groups established with progress reports provided to
the Development Committee and finance matters reported to P&R.

A Project Board was established to manage projects and each project has a
Senior Responsible Officer and Project Directors / Managers along with other
support officers.
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Review of Effectiveness

MUDC has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed
by the work of the executive managers within Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Auditors
annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors.

Describe the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the governance framework, including some comment on the role of:

° the authority - MUDC

The extent of the authority of Mid Ulster District Council is within the Local
Government (Northem Ireland) Act 1972, specifically Section 7(1) to (7). This
is followed up and reviewed as and when required, within the Terms of
Reference for Council and Committees document. This document is
accessible within the Council’s Constitution.

The main decision-making body is full Council of elected Members who are
ultimately responsible for ensuring effective governance arrangements are in
place in order for Council to achieve its goals and objectives. Council meets
monthly in statutory meetings.

Council has established five sub-Committees to consider its operations in line
with defined areas of responsibility. These Committees are informed by
Council officers. Recommendations made by the Committees following the
consideration of their business are brought forward for consideration and
adoption at the next available monthly meeting of full Council, unless authority
has been delegated on such matters.

Council / Committee meetings were conducted virtually through secured
platforms and in line with Government Regulations, which were reflected
within the standing orders

° the executive

The Chief Executive ensures that all Council services and activities are
delivered in accordance with Council's Corporate Plan. The Chief Executive
is supported by the Senior Management Team (SMT) who meet twice a
month to monitor strategic direction and good governance across the District.

Each Director / Assistant Director / Head of Services provides a bi-annual and
annual assurance statement to confirm that laws, regulations, policies and
procedures were complied with, effective risk management and controls exist
and were operational during 2021/22.

The Financial Management (FM) Code was effective from Aprit 2021 which
provided guidance for good / sustainable financial management in local
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authorities, giving assurance that authorities are managing resources
effectively. An assessment was undertaken, and it was agreed that the
Council was generally compliant but would benefit from the implementation of
a number of actions. These actions included the formalisation of the Council's
medium term financial plan.

the Audit Committee / Overview and Scrutiny Committees / Risk
Management Committee

The Audit Committee's terms of reference are set out in the Constitution and
are in accordance with recommendations from CIPFA. This Committee
provides an important source of assurance to those charged with governance
in relation to the Council's arrangements for managing risk, maintaining an
effective control environment, and reporting on financial and other
performance. The Committee meets quarterly during 2021/22 with some
members meeting remotely.

A training needs assessment was completed for Audit Members in Sept 19
which resulted in specialist training on Treasury Management provided to
Audit Members in December 2021.

The Audit Committee Members conducts an annual review of effectiveness
against good practice and an evaluation of their performance in 2021/22
which was deemed as effective. Council appointed an independent Member
over a 4-year term, who provides additional independence and professional
support to the Council on assessing the governance, risk and control
framework.

Training needs are considered for all Members by Democratic Services on a
regular basis e.g. On-Board governance training delivered in March 2023.

the standards committee

The Council continue to operate the Traditional Committee System for
organisational decisions, similar to that employed since the Council’s
establishment on April 2015. Arrangements are documented within the
Council document ‘Terms of Reference & Delegation to Committees’ setting
out the decision-making remit/scope of each committee and that of the
Council which meets monthly to consider recommendations coming forward

from committees.

internal audit

Internal Audit provides an independent assurance and advisory service to
assist Council in achieving its objectives and improving the effectiveness of
internal control, risk management and governance processes.

The Internal Audit Service was adequately resourced and deemed as
operating effectively based on an internal and external review of effectiveness
(which is required every 5 years, completed during 2020/21 and was
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effective). There were 10 audit reports — 1 limited (Information Governance),
1 advisory and 8 satisfactory reports issued during 2021/22. Two audits were
deferred and replaced by other assignments owing to the changing risk
landscape.

The limited assurance was provided in relation to Information Governance
with two priority 1 audit recommendations, which related to (1) a gap in
oversight on Information Management and a (2) low uptake on General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) / Information Management mandatory
training. A dedicated Information Governance Officer and Cyber /
Infrastructure Manager post is proposed in the revised organisation structure
within Corporate Services / Finance for 2022/23. There was a significant
increase in mandatory training completed during 2021/22 and IT now deploys
regular short security awareness videos for staff to complete. Wider
strengthening of identify management controls was undertaken with ongoing
investment in enhancing the control environment.

Overall, the Internal Audit Manager provides a ‘satisfactory’ annual assurance
opinion in relation to the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
framework of governance, risk management and control based on the audit
work completed for 2021/22. While there were some residual risks identified,
they should not significantly impact on the achievement of the Council's
objectives. Internal Audit also monitors the implementation of previous audit
recommendations and reports progress to Senior Management and the Audit

Committee regularly.
other explicit review/assurance mechanisms

Council maintains a Governance and Assurance Framework and maps out
the internal (e.g., Health & Safety inspections) and external assurances (e.g.
Health & Safety Executive & Environment Agency waste management
inspections). The LGA gives an independent audit opinion on the financial
accounts.

We have been advised on the implications of the resuit of the review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework by the executive/ Audit Committee, and a
plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in

place.
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Significant Governance Issues

Council has adopted the approach recommended by the CIPFA which identified
issues that may be considered generally as being significant issues. These include
whether the:

+ Issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal objective;
« Issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved;
» Issue has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the

business;

« Issue has led to a material impact on the accounts;
» Audit Committee, or equivalent, has advised that it should be considered significant

for this purpose; or

+ Head of Internal Audit has reported on it as significant in the annual opinion on

the internal control environment.

Progress from previous years significant governance issues:

Significant Governance Issues 2020/21;

1.

Covid-19 - The financial consequences of the continuing pandemic remain
uncertain. However, the Council continues to engage with Central Government
and other Funders to identify and mitigate financial pressures.

a. Update - DfC continue to provide financial support to Councils to
compensate for losses arising due to covid however, this support was
significantly less in 2021/22 than 2020/21. No commitment for further
funding but no longer a significant governance issue.

Rate Support Grant (RSG) - The long-term security of the RSG remains
uncertain. The Department of Finance’s legislative amendment (prior to councils
striking their district Rates in March 2021) to allow councils to strike two
independent district Rates suggests that there may be a threat to the future
calculation of conversion factors {(by the Department of Finance), which
underpins the distribution of RSG between efigible councils. The Director of
Finance continues to engage with ALGFO, SOLACE, similar Councils, DfC and
DoF in relation to this risk.

a. Update - DFC has prepared a paper for the incoming Minister to consider.

The officers understand that they will advocate a complete review of the

RSG.

Cyber Threat — A phishing email from an external source was received internally
(common access point for attacks) which was opened by one officer. The attack
was identified and removed, it was unsuccessful as no data lost or financial cost
incurred but to remain secure, additional training was provided. The cyber
security risk is closely monitored and managed in the Corporate Risk Register as
the Council has invested in high quality IT infrastructure and applications, as well
as ongoing training.

a. Update — Continuing to implement additional security measures. e.g.

firewalls, back-ups, training.
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Bignificant Governance Issues 2021/22:

1.

Escalating economic global pressures — a range of budget pressures e.g.
rising inflation / energy and utility costs which impacts on disposabie incomes
and margins. Supply chain / materials and rising costs continues to pose
challenges across the district. Council will continue to seek ways to generate
efficiencies / savings and increase income generation opportunities. The
Medium Term Financial Plan will reflect the officers best estimates of how
these pressures might impact on Council.

Staff - Labour shortages and wage increases. Challenges in terms of
recruitment and retention of staff, coupled with ongoing consultations
regarding terms and conditions could impact on service delivery. Further
industrial action of members by Unite could impact on statutory service
delivery. Consultations will continue with Trade Unions and the Council will
use the Organisational Review to explore opportunities to retain and recruit
staff.

Information Management — Following internal assessment and review by
Internal Audit, Council recognised Information Management as an area for
improvement. Council is seeking to sfrengthen Information Management as
part of the Organisational Review and plan to recruit an Information
Governance Officer and Cyber / Infrastructure Manager in 2022/23.

Cyber security - Council acknowledge the ongoing and every increasing
Cyber risk and has invested significantly in protecting its infrastructure and
providing ongoing mandatory and refresher training programmes. The
Organisational Review is seeking to strengthen the Council's investment in IT
security by dedicating officers to managing this risk.

Rate Support Grant - The long-term security of the RSG remains uncertain.
The Director of Corporate Services and Finance continues to engage with
ALGFO, SOLACE, DfC and DoF in relation to this risk. Councils eligible to
receive RSG have previously made direct representations to the Permanent
Secretary of the DfC and the Minister. Despite these representations, the
Department has made no commitment in relation to RSG but has indicated
with its intention (subject to Ministerial approval) to review RSG in its entirety.
The officers feel that this review was precipitated by the Council’s victory at
Court of Appeal in 2018 and that the probable outcome of any such review will
be to reduce the amount of RSG received by the Council. However, with no
Minister currently in place, any such review will be delayed.

Health & Safety - Ongoing engagement with HSENI into circumstances
surrounding loss of life at Council facilities = Public and employee safety
continues to be a priority for Council with ongoing co-operation with relevant
authorities.

24



We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps
will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of
effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next

annual review.

Signed C% Date: 29 September 2022
Chair
Signed N S — Date: 29 September 2022
O

Chief Executive

On behalf of the Members of Mid Ulster District Council as a whole and by the
Chief Executive.
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1.

Introduction

The Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015
require larger local government bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of
the statement of accounts.

Allowance and Remuneration Arrangements

Councillors

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under
Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local
Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern reland) 2012, which
came into operation on 1 April 2012.

Guidance and determinations on councillors’ allowances applicable from 1 April
2021 were issued by the Department for Communities on 8 March 2021 (Circular
LG 07/2021) and addendum issued on 28 March 2022 (LG 10/2022). Details of the
allowances paid to individual councillors are published on council websites.

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 462 councillors were elected to the 11
new councils for a four-year term. Mid Ulster District Council had 40 councillors in

2021/22.

Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the council is determined by
the council in line with that determined by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local
Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the
Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local
Government Staff Commissions’ Code of Procedures on Recruitment and
Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and

open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold
appointments which are open-ended.
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3. Allowances Paid to Councillors

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the
Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government
(Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors {audited information)

Allowance Total Number of Total
Allowances Councillors Allowances
receiving
. - £ | Allowance £ — |
Basic Allowance 619,085 40 619,384

Special '_ 48,500‘{_ 17 48,500

Responsibility

| Allowance | o 1 .
Chairperson/ 14,000 2 14,000

| Mayor Allowance | a

Vice Chairperson/ 7.500 2 7500 |

Deputy Mayor
Allowance | | B |
Mileage | 9,682 [ 22 12,619
Allowance ! i
Public Transport - -
and Other Travel
Incidentals . | L
| Subsistence | : - -1 - |
Courses/ 5,554 1 3.272
Conferences visits
(registration &
| loining fees) | . | -
| Dependants’ 0 0
Carers Allowance — .
TOTAL 704,321 | 705,275
ALLOWANCES )

2021/22 1 2020721

Number of
Councillors
receiving
Allowance

40

32

20

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2021/22 are published on
the council website at https://www.midulstercouncil.ora/your-counci/councillor-

and-committees/councillor-allowances.
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4. Remuneration of Senior Employees

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management
Team/Senior Management Team. The following table provides details of the
remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneratlon (including salary) (audited information)

| Officers | o 2021/22 . | 2020/21
Salary (Full | Bonus Benefits | Total | Salary (Full | Bonus | Benefits Total
year Payments inkind | year Payments | in kind
equivalent | {to | equivalent | (to
in brackets nearest in brackets nearest
where £100} where £100)
applicable) ‘ applicable)
Lo (£'000  £'000 | £ | £'000  £'000 | £'000 | £ | £'000
Christopher 71 (73k) 0 0 71 |
 Boomer* | . b . | i [ | |
Anne-Marie | 85 0 0 85 |8 0 0 8l
Campbell | | | i | | | |
Marissa 85 0 0 85 81 ] 0 81
Canavan | | | | | .
Andrew 2 0 0 I 2 81 0 [0 | 81
Cassells™ | | | _ | a
Maik Kelso | 82 0 0 82 |81 0 |0 | 81
Adrian 110 0 4] 110 | 8% {106k} 0 To 89
McCreesh | | L L. | I |
JJ Tohill 21 0o o 21 81 0 0 81

*Mr Christopher Boomer appointed Service Director 01/10/2021 (previously
manager)

*Mr Andrew Cassells resigned 09/04/2021

Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the
highest paid member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management
Team and the median remuneration of the Council's workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team/Senior Management Team in the financial year 2021/22 was
£110k - £120k. This was 4.85 times the median remuneration of the workforce,

which was £22,833.
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Table 3:

Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the
Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median
remuneration of the Council’s workforce (audited information)

, 2021/22 2020/21
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the  £110,684 £105,670
Executive Management Team/Senior
‘Management Team | |
Median Total Remuneration £22,833 £22,3146
Ratio S 4.85 474

In 2021/22, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid
member of the Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments
Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part

of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the performance in the year in which
they become payable to the individual. No bonuses were paid in 2021/22 or

2020/21.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the
employer and treated by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.
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5. Exit Packages for Staff
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council, together with
total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are
set out in the table below:
Table 4: Exit Packages {audited information)
2021/22 | 2020/21 B
Severance Number | Numberof Total Total Cost  Number  Number Total Total Cost
Package of Com- other Number of of Com- of other Number of
CostBand pulsory departures  of Exit Packages pulsory depart- of Packages
Redund- agreed Pack- in each Redund- ures Exit in each
ancies ages in Cost Band ancies agreed Packages CostBand
each in each
[ Cost | Cost Band
! ! _Band  £'000 | | | £'000
£0- 0 0 0 0 ¢ | 0 1 2
 £20000 e e e e b ; ; I L _
£20,001- 0 0 0 |0 0 0 0 0
2991999, — _J“ —
£40,001 0 0 0 0 0 ' 0 1 60
£60,000 | 1
£60,001 0 0 0 0 0 F 0 0 0
£80,000 . | | ,
£80,001- O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,000 i |
£100,001 O lo 0 0 0 0 0 0
| £150,000 I ! | | I |
£150,001 0 ‘ 0 ’ 3 545 0 0 0 0
£200000 - SR S o |
£200,001 0 0 l 2 i 456 o 0 0 0
£250,000 B . e o | ! &
£250,001 0 0 1 250 0 0 0 0
£300000 ., , I ~ | |
{ Total |0 io 6 1251 0 0 2 62
6. Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which is
a funded defined benefit pension scheme, which provides retirement benefits for
council employees on a “career average revalued earnings” basis from 1 April
2015. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th
pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits in relation to membership
between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/60th
pensionable pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum
provided in respect of membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefits in
relation to any membership before 1 April 2002 were built up at the rate of 1/80th
(pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of
membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement, members may give up some
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pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC)
limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given

up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme
application is modified to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office.
Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average basis. Prior
to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of

1/49th.

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and
employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, a member’s contribution rates were fixed at 6%
of their pensionable remuneration (except for those who were entitied to contribute
to the Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous
employment). Tiered member contribution rates, determined by the whole-time
equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the
member contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the
Department for Communities in April each year in accordance with the increase
applied to a pension in payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2021, were as

follows:

Table 5: Empiloyee Contribution Rates

fBond Range | Employee Contribution Rate
1 | £0-£15,000 ' 5.5%

l2 ' £15,001 - £23,000 | 58%
3 | £23,001 - £38.400 | 6.5%
4 © £38,401- £46,600 | 6.8%

'5 | £46,601 - £92,300 8.5%

I3 ' More than £92,300 1 10.5%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three
years at the triennial valuation. A formal triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund as
at 31 March 2019 was carried out in 2019/20 and set the employer contribution
rates for the 3 years commencing 1 April 2020 as follows:

Table é: Employer Conlribution Rafes

Year ! Employer Contribution Rate
1 Aprit 2020 - 31 March 2021 | - 19.5%
1 April 2021 - 31 March 2022 f » 19.5%
1 April 2022 - 31 March 2023 19.5%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were
made on 27 June 2014 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment
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and Transitional Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30
June 2014. Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have

not accrued significant benefits thus far. However, the in-year pension
contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2021/22 was £127,830.

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council
accrued during the year was as follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2021/22 (audited information)

| Officers Accrued Real Real CETvat CEVat Real
Pension at increase In  increase 31/3/22  31/3/21 increase
pension pension at  (decrease) in CETV
age as at pension In related
31/3/22 and | age lump sum  £'000 £'000
related £'000 al pension £'000
lump sum age
£'000 | £'000 | ! ;
Christopher  40-45 plus 0-3 0-3 871 803 5 !
Boomer 90-95 fump
Anne-Marie  30-35 plus 0-3 0-3 433 374 40
Campbell 25-30 lump
| sum | | i
. 40-45 plus 0-3 0-3 666 598 42
Marissa
60-65 lump
Canavan
sum _ b _ | |
4550 plus  0-3 ' (0-3) 951 901 15
Mark Kelso  75-80 lump
i - Sum i — - + - -+ -
. 40-45 plus 0-3 0-3 725 655 38
Adrian 55-60 lump
McCreesh
- Sum 2 + - * P — ! S—
35-40 plus 3-6 0-3 647 567 54
JJ Tohill 50-55 lump
sum
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuariaily assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the
scheme. It is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure
pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the pension benefits they have accrued
in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.
CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes
(Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual
or potential reduction to benefits resuiting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may
be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does not
include the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension
scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start
and end of the period. However, the real increase calculation uses common
actuarial factors at the start and end of the period so that it disregards the effect of
any changes in factors and focuses only on the increase that is funded by the

emplover.

QN N~

Chief Executive

29 September 2022
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(@) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 on pages 40
to 43 has been prepared in the form directed by the Department for Communities
and under the accounting policies set out on pages 44 to 63.

(b)  in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the
income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial
position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st March 2022.

Chief Financial Officer

Date 29 September 2022

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Council on 22 September 2022,

Chairman

Date 29 September 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MID ULSTER DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

I have audited the financial statements of Mid Ulster District Council for the year ended 31
March 2022 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial
statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Movement in
Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting on the
United Kingdom supported by UK adopted international accounting standards.

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as
having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021-22,
of the financial position of Mid Ulster District Council as at 31 March 2022 and its income
and expenditure for the year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities’
directions issued thereunder.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs} (UK). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of
Mid Ulster District Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that Mid Ulster District Council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Mid
Ulster District Council's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

The going concern basis of accounting for Mid Ulster District Council is adopted in consideration
of the requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, which require
entities to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements where it anticipated that the services which they provide will continue into the
future.
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My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts other
than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in that report as
having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. The Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for the other information included in the Statement of Accounts. My opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in my report, | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or my knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, | am required to determine whether this
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
infarmation, | am required to report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities’” directions made under the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

e the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2022 is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Mid Ulster District Council and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material misstatements in
the Statement of Accounts.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
e in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

= does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021-22;

®» does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;
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® is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o I have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

e |issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or

e | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

e | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities,
the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

e the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view;

e such internal controls as the Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free form material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error;

e assessing the Mid Ulster District Council’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Chief Financial Officer anticipates that the services
provided by Mid Ulster District Council will not continue to be provided in the future.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue a
certificate that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

| design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud.

37



My procedures included:

obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Mid
Ulster District Council through discussion with management and application of
extensive public sector accountability knowledge. The key laws and regulations |
considered included Local Government (Accounts and Audit} Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015;

making enquires of management and those charged with governance on Mid Ulster
District Council’'s compliance with laws and regulations;

making enquiries of internal audit, management and those charged with governance as
to susceptibility to irregularity and fraud, their assessment of the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and irregularity, and their knowledge of actual, suspected
and alleged fraud and irregularity;

completing risk assessment procedures to assess the susceptibility of Mid Ulster District
Council’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might
occur. This included, but was not limited to, an engagement director led engagement
team discussion on fraud to identify particular areas, transaction streams and business
practices that may be susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. As part of this
discussion, | identified potential for fraud in the posting of unusual journals;

engagement director oversight to ensure the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with the applicable legal and regulatory framework throughout the audit;

documenting and evaluating the design and implementation of internal controls in
place to mitigate risk of material misstatement due to fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations;

designing audit procedures to address specific laws and regulations which the
engagement team considered to have a direct material effect on the financial
statements in terms of misstatement and irregularity, including fraud. These audit
procedures included, but were not limited to, reading Council and Audit Panel minutes,
and agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation
and approvals as appropriate;

addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls by:

o performing analytical procedures to identify unusual or unexpected
relationships or movements;

o testing journal entries to identify potential anomalies, and inappropriate or
unauthorised adjustments;

o assessing whether judgements and other assumptions made in determining
accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias; and

o investigating significant or unusual transactions made outside of the normal
course of business.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of my certificate.
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This report is made solely to the Members of Mid Ulster District Council in accordance with the
Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the
Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local Government Bodies.

Certificate

I certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Mid Ulster District Council in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local
Government Code of Audit Practice.

Colette Kane

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

14% October 2022
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Mid Ulster District Council
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Siatement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the omount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordonce with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown
in both the Expenditure and Funding Anolysis and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2021722 Restated 202021

Chief Bxecutive 2 6,085,143 (1562472} 4502471 7,317,372 12.984,396) 4,332,976
Service Director - Planning 2 1,944,541 (1.775.383) 169,158 2221992 11,600,925} 621,067
Strategic Direclor of

b 2 22,749,806 (A877151) 17872455 20,216,007 3,592,199} 16,623,808
Communities & Place
Shategic Birector of 2 5,673,477 (1996803} 3.676.674 5242184 11,678.108] 3,564,076
Corparate Service / Finance
Strategic Drector of 2 26.818.489 (23754740 24,443,215 25,404,976 (1,918.704} 23,486,272

Environment

Sirotegic Director of

Organisation Development, 2 2,343,467 {193,231} 2,150,236 2,424,994 {210,121) 2,214,873
Strategy & Performance

Non Distributed Cost 2 317,903 (1,594,430} {1.276,527) 1,423,248 (14,268.758) {12,845,510}

CHA S SOTe 65 933.024 (14 395.144) 37 8 84.250 773 (26 253.211) 37 997562

L onhinging Operahons

Other Operating
Expenditure/ Income 8 41,556 {53.709) (12,153) 7.410 {102.283) {94,873)

Financing and Investment 9 1,439,474 16.059) 1,433,415 1.203,433 {5.329) 1,198,104
Income and Expenditure

39.100.7%3

Net Operaling Expendilure 67414056 (14 454 912) 65 481 614

Taxolion and Non-Specific

Grant Income 10 - {56.241,139)  [56,241.139) - {52,114,017) {52.114.017}

S T o 67414056  (70496051) (3281995} 85451 816 {76 474 84D) (12013 224)

Provision of Services

{Surpius)/Deficit on

revaluation of non-current 1 {6,582.752) 403,375
assets

Remeosurements of the Net

Defined Benefit Liability 20 20,461,211} 12,265,994
[Asset}

Other Comptehensive income and Expenditure (27.043 963) 12 669 369
Tolal Compiehensive Income and Expendiure (30.325 958) {343.855)



Mid Ulster District Councll
Movement In Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the different reserves held by the
Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other
‘unusable reserves'. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are broken down between gains and
Josses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustment required fo return fo the
amounts chargeable to Rotes for the year. The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movements in

the venr fallnwina thase adinciments

Balance as ai 1 Apnl 202 5838 774 < 276 521 27.316 170 70 A79 413

Movement In reserves during
the year

] 3]
Surplus/ (Deficil} on ihe 13,013,224 - . 13,013,224 ; 13,013,224
provision of services

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

- - [12.669.36%) {12,669.369)

Tolal Comprehensive Incame B
and Expeneliture 13,013,224 - 13,013,224 (12,669.369) 343,855

Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding
under regulations

4,365,987 - 102,283 6,468,270 (4,448,270} -

Net Increase belore fransters
to Statvtory and Other 19,379.21) - 102,283 19,481,494 {17,137.439%) 343,885

Resarves

Transfers to / from Statutory
and Other Reserves (18855,001) 18.855.001 h

Increase/ Decrease in year 524,210 18,855,001 102,283 19,481,494 {19,137,639) 343,855

40 035 886 I¥E 814 46,797 664 51.341.974 9€,13% £38

Bolance as at 37 March 2021

Movement In reserves during
the year

Surplus/ [Defici) on the 3,281,995 - . 3261995 . 3.281.995
provision of services

Other Comprehensnv.e _ 27.043,963 27,043,963
Income and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 3,281,995 - - 3.281,995 27,043,963 30,325,958

Adjustments between
accounling basis & funding B.401,734 [15.000.000} 53,709 (6.544,557) 6,544,557 -

under regulations

Net Increase before transters

to Statutory and Other 11,683,729 (15,000,000) 53,709 (3.262,542) 33,588,520 30,325,958
Reserves
Transfers to / from Statutory (11.146,795) 11,146,795 . . R B

and Other Reserves

Increase in year 534,924 (3.853,205) 53,709 (3.262.582) 33,588,520 30,325,958

43 535 102 84 930 494 128 455 578

#odance as ol 31 March 2022 5,899 918 36 182 861
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Mid Ulster District Council
Balance Sheet as o} 31 March 2022

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at Ihe Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. The net assels
of the Council {assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first
category of reserves is usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Councit may use 1o provide services, subject to the need to maintain a
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use. The second calegory of reserves is those that the Council is not abie
1o use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sotd; and reserves that hold
fiming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ' Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under

ramilatianme!

Restoted 31si

Nat = 22
ate 31st March 20 tarch 021

= ] s it
Fixed Assets 1 147,521,096 140,322,712
LONG TERM ASSETS 147 521 094 140 322712
Inventories 14 259,565 188,837
Short Term Debtors 15 14,928,082 9,564,971
Cosh and Cash Equivalents 22 35,052,532 31.020,778
CRRENT ASTETS 50240179 40 774.586
Short Tetm Borowing 16 696,022 679,123
Short Term Creditors 17 14,944,862 14,179,677
CURRENT LIABILITIES 15 440 884 14 £58,800
Provisions 18 1,703.147 2436.194
Long Tesm Borrowing 16 4,084,448 4,780,666
Other Long Term Liabifities 20 47,867,000 40,882,000
CING TERM LIABILITIES 48 098840
128 465.5%4 96.139.638

USABLE RESERVES

Caopital Receipts Reserve 23 452,523 398,814
Capital Fund 23 21,822.882 26,322,882
Renewal and Repuirs Fund 23 13,406 13,404
Other Balances ond Reserves 23 14,346,373 13,699,578
23 6.892.918 6,362,984

General Fund

43 535102 44797 654

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 24 80.618.853 65,440,413

Revaluation Reserve 24 53,217,161 49,062,006

Pensions Reserve 24 {47,867,000) (60.882,000)

Accumulated Absences Accoun 24 (765.312) {1.266,887}

Provisions Discount Raie Reserve 24 (973.208) {1,011,558)
84 930 494 51341 574
128 445 504 58 13%.¢38

NET WORTH
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Mid Ulster District Council
Cash flow Stalement at 31 March 2022

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement
shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows os operating. investing and financing
acliviiies. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is o key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the
Counci ore funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intfended to contribute to the Council's future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are usefut in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital

fi.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Ne_t (S:;';I:L'l;; D.eﬁ;f on t-hé provisi;n of services. 3, ,975) (;3,013,224)
Adjustmenl for non-cash movements 22 8.137.980 11,450,300
s ot e sk s oRI N POHNS gy gy s
Net cash flows hom operating activilies 22 9012713 21540116
Cash flows from Investing Activities 22 (4,302.846) (3.707,024)
Net Cash flows from finoncing Activities 22 (679.119) {654,959)

17178133

Net increase of decrease In cosh ond cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the reporfing period 31,020,778 13,842,445

21,020778

Cuash ond cash equivalents at the end of the teporting period
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Mid Ulster District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's fransactions for the 2021/22 finoncial year
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 22. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Depariment for Communities in accordonce
with regulations 3 {7) and (8) in the Local Govemment {Accounts and Audit) Regulations
{Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS}. The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost,
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-cumrent assets and financial
instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income ond Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

- Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods,
is recognisd when {or as) the goods or services are fransferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between ihe date supplies are received and their consumption, they are camied as inventories

on the Balance Sheet.

- Expenses in relation fo services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are

made.
- Interest receivable on investiments and payable on borowings is accounted for respectively

as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where itis
doubtiul that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made
to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations

There were no acguisitions or discountinued operations during the current financial year
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Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As each of the legacy councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Pay and Grading Reviews, the Councit did not acquire an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy councils and those transfering in from the
Department of the Environment's Planning Service are protected by the Transfer of Protected
Undertakings Act {Northern ireland) 2006 {TUPE), the Council did not seek to amend these
employees' terms and conditions of employment at the date of local government reform (1
Aptil 2015). Appropriate provision will be made for any financial consequences of employees’
terms and conditions as and when required.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
fulure events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note o the
accounts.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due fo be settled wholly within 12 months of the vear-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefis {e.g. employer contributions to Westfield Health) for
current employees, and are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render
service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entittements {or any form of
leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees con cary forward into the next financial year. The accrualis made at the wage
and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the
employee takes the benefit. The accrualis charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council o ferminate
an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to
the appropriate service segment or, where applicable. to a corporate service segment at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the
Council recognises costs of an organisaticnal restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required fo
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement fermination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid ai the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers'
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Superannuation
Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Nerthern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined
benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund atfributable to
the Council are inciuded in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation o refirement
benefits eamed to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected eamings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assets of the Northern Ireland Locat Government Officers' pension fund atfributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

guoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securifies — professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securities — current bid price
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The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

{a) Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which

the employees worked

Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service eamned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements.

(b} within Financing and investment income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset}, — ie net interest expense for the Council,
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability {asset} that arises from the
passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statement - this is calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period fo
the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset] during the period as @ result of confribution
and benefit payments.

(¢) Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure [Remeosurements)

The Relum on Plan Assets - excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability {Asset} charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, This includes inferest, dividends and other income derived from the
plan assets. together with realised and unreclised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any
costs of managing plan assets, and any fax payable by the plan itself other than tax included
in the actuarial assumptions used fo measure the present value of the defined benefit

obligation.

Actuarial Gadins and Losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

{d) Within the Maovement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Participants - the increase in scheme liabiliies and assets due to
payments into the scheme by employees {where increased confribution increases pension
due to the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due fo payments into the
scheme by the employer
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In relation to refirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are fransfers to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them
with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required fo
account for retirement benefils on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by

empioyees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of refirement benefits in
the event of early refrements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted
for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’

pension fund.

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1 Aprit 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Norfhern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums
and pensions). However, the arangements for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that liabilities
for these benefits connot ordinarily be identified specifically to the Council. The scheme is
therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future
payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheed.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accaunts
is autharised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period -
the Staternent of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events. but where a category of events would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated

financial effect.

The Statement of Accounts may subsequently be adjusted up fo the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually the
date the Local Government Auditor issues the cerlificate and opinion. Where material
adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.
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Exceptional ltems

When itermns of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
ihe notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjusiments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or fo correct
@ material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more refiable or relevant information about the effect of fransactions,
other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
dlways been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior petiod figures are corrected refrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period,

Financial Instruments

Financia! liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and
are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investrnent Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the canying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originatly

recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount poyable for

the year according to the loan agreement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive iIncome and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term
that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

- amortised cost
- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
- fair value through other comprehensive income {FYOCI)

The Council's business madel is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose coniractual payments
are not solely payment of principal and inferest {ie where the cash flows do nof take the form

of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets meosured at amertised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheef when the
Council becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequenily measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Invesiment income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the camying amount
of the asset multipiied by the effective rate of interest for the insfrument. For most of the
financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable {plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure is the amount receivable for the yearin the loan

agreement.

However, the Council is authorised fo make loans to voluntary organisations at less than market
rates {soft foans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement [debited to the appropriate service] for the present value of the
interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amorfised ¢ost

than the outstanding principal.

Where soft loans exist interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stotement at a marginally
higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with
the difference serving to increase the amoriised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet.
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance Is the
interest receivable for the financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer fo or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the
Financing and Investiment income and Expenditure Jine in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease
receivables and coniract assets. Only fifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables

{debtaors) held by the Council
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Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not
take place because the borower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial
part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was intially
recoghised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significiantly or
remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Valve through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVYPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured and carfed at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arive in
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

- instruments with quoted market prices - the market price
- other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement fechniques are categorised in accordance with the following
three levels:

« Level 1 inpuls - quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.

« Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

« Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Insruments enlered into before 1 April 2006

The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be
accounted for as financial instruments. These guaraniees are reflected in the Statement of
Accounts to the extent that provisions might be required or a contingent liability note is needed
under the policies set out in the section on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets.

Foreign Cumrency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a fransaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the daie the
transaction was effective. Where amounis in foreign cunrency are oufstanding at the year-end.
they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March, Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears. government grants and third party
confributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable

assurance that:

- the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or confributions will be received.
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Amounts recognised as due are hot credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or conhibution are required to be consumed by
the recipient as specified. or future economic benefits or service potenfial must be retuned fo

the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been safisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are safisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income {non-ring-fenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustmeni Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by
the Council as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the

Council.

internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically fecsible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available} and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service
potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be
measured reliably as afributable to the asset and restricted to that incurred during the
development phase {research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value
of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In
practice. no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore
canied at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised aver its
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted 1o the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjusiment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts

Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net redlisable value. The
cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.

Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations safisfied
based on the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year.

The Council has not acquired material balances of inventories for less than their fair value.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Alowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme {Northern
Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual farget figures for the
maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent 1o landfill but there are
no fradable allowances. Itis not a 'cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not
tradable. For this reason, landfill aliowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance

Sheet.

Lleases

leases are classified as leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental fo ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as eperating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right 1o use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiment of the amangement is

dependent on the use of specific assefs

The Council as Lessee - [ease

Property, plant and equipment held under leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease af its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the present
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is maiched by a liability
for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying
amount of the asset. Premiums paid on eniry into a lease are applied to writing down the
lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are

incurred.
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Lease payments are apportioned between:
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or eguipment - applied to

write down the lease liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generdlly to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease ferm if
this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life {where ownership of the asset does not
fransfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Councilis not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, o prudent annual confribution is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital investrent in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by arevenue confribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference

between the two.

Operdling Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged io the Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the patiern of payments {e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - lease

Where the Council grants a lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the
lease, the canying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet {whether Property, Plant and
Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is wiitten off to the Other Operating Expenditure fine in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A
gain, representing the Council's net invesiment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staternent also as part of the gain or loss on disposal
{i.e. netted off against the canying value of the asset at the fime of disposal), matched by a
lease asset [long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease

debtor together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
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The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposalis not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required fo be treated as o
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received. this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance fo the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
amount due in relation o the lease asset is to be setiled by the payment of rentals in future
financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance fo the Deferred Capital Receipfs
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element
for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At
this point, the deferred capital receipis are transferred fo the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The writlen-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-cuent
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operaling Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of
payments {e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rentaf

income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the camying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, if is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then caried at the
lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease fo
fair value less costs o sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Detficit on the Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were
classified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciafion, amortisation or revaluations that would
have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale, and their recoverable
amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the camying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale] is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals {if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the camying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluafion gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited 1o the
Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of non-current
assets is fully provided for under separate arangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated fo the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Supporl Services

The casts of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance
with the Council's arangements for accountability and financial performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for adminisirafive purposes and that are expecied to be used
during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of properly, plant and equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliobly. Expenditure that maintains but does not add o an asset’s potential
fo deliver future economic benefits or service potential {i.e. repairs and mainienance} is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Megsurement
Assets are initiolly measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs aftributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it fo
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost
of the acquisition is the camying amount of the asset given up by the Council.
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Donated assets are measured initially of fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stafement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Bolance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost
- surplus assets - the cument value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and

best use from a market participant's perspective
- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset inifs

existing use {existing use value ~ EUV}

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
asset, deprecioied replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their camying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. [Exceptionally. gains might be credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stotement where they arise from the reversal of a

loss previously charged to a service.]

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into

the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
camying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are idenfified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carying amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up to the amount of the

accumulated gains),

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down aguoinst the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expendifure Statement.

where an impairment loss is reversed subsequenily, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service linefs) in the Cornprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the oniginal loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not

been recognised.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on ail property. plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assefs
without a determinable finite useful life [i.e. freehold land and cerfain Community Assets) and
assets that are not yet available for use {i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

- buildings, including installations and fittings, are depreciated on a straight line basis on their
camying value over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset as advised by the valuer
from Land & Property Services.

- plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis on historic cost using a standaord
useful life of 5 years

- vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis on historic cost using a standard useful life of
8 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution fo
knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assels are those assets that are intended to be preserved in frust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic asseciations. They would be held by this
quthority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation fo the maintenance of heritage.

At the end of this reporting period the Council holds two chains of office and a watercolour
painting as heritage assets.
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Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires setflement by a fransfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation,

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the
obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure
required to setile the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settiement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the

relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party {e.g. from an insurance claimy), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council setiles

the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover

contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund Balonce.

When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incumed, it is charged fo the appropriate
service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back info
the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the

expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-cumrent assets, financial
instruments, retirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources
for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.
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Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts fo
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

a. depreciation attibuiable o the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impdirment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

¢. amortisation of intangible fixed assets athibutable fo the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation ond
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall botrowing requirement [equal fo
either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordaonce
with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation
are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance [minimum revenue
provision {MRP}} or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances], by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for
the difference between the two.

Revenue Expendiiure Funded from Capltal under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a nan-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in ihe Movement in Reserves Statemeni from the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so
that there is no impact on the level of District Rates.

Valve Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only 1o the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Fair Valve Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assels such as surplus assets and investiment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings [other financial
instruments as applicable] at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes
that the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability fakes place either:

60



a} in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liakilily using the assumptions that market
parlicipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act

in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Councll takes into account o
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market pariicipant that would use the asset in its highest and

best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs,

Inputs to the valuation technigues in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council's financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy, as follows:

- Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the authority can access at the measurement date

- Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

- Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Joint Operations

Joint operations are arangements where the parties that have joint conirol of the
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabiiities relating to the
arangement. The activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other joint operators

involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation fo its interesi in a
joint operation, the authority as a joint operator recognises;

- its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly

- its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly

- its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation
- its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation

- its expenses, including its share of any expenses incured jointly
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Accounting Standards That Have Been Issved but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change
that will be reauired by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. The Code
alse requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied refrospectively unless
transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures spanning
two financial years.

The standards infroduced by the 2022/23 Code and relevant for additional disclosures that will
be required in the 2021/22 financial statements are:

-IFRS 14 Leases, DfC has indicated Council will implement this in 2024/25 year.

- Annual Improvements o IFRS Standards 2018-2020..The annual IFRS improvement
programme notes 4 changed standards: IFRS 1 {First-ime adopfion), IAS 37 {Onerous
contracts), IFRS 14 (Leases) and IAS 41 (Agriculture).

- Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments fo IAS 16).

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1a above. the Council has had to make certain
judgements about complex fransactions or those invalving uncertainty about fulure events.
The crifical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

- There is a high degree of unceriainty obout future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of o need fo close
facilities and reduce levels of service provision. The Council is therefore satisified that the
accounts should be prepdid on the basis that the Council is o going concern.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Siatement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking info
account historical experience, curent trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be detemmined with certainty, actual results could be materially different
from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2022 for which there is a significant risk of
maierial adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
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iv)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incunred in relation fo individual assets. The curent
economic climate makes it uncertain thal the Council will be able to sustain its curent
spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing info doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

If the usetul life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected retums on pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.
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Mig Uiglar Dlssict Councll
Nates bo the Finonckal Slatemants
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% MARCH 2022

¢nd e ano Funding Anaiysn

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources {government grants,
rents, council tax and business rates} by local authorties in comparison with those resources consumed or eamed by
outhorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. it also shows how this expendiiure is allocated for
decision making purposes between the council's (directorates/ services/ departments]. Income and expendilure occounted
for under generally accepted accounting proctices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure

Statement.

| ]

Chief Executive 3,539,228 943,243 4,502471 | 3,858,300 474,676 | 4332876 |
I 3 : b 4

Service Director - Planning 87.242 81916 169,158 334,551 286,514 | 421,067 |
Strategic Director al I 1 T | | ]
Communities & Place 11,049,216 | 6323239 17.872.655 10.836.744 5.787.064 16.623.808 ;
strategic Directar of Comperofe | i l =————— — 0
Service / inance 3,645,263 3141 3,676,474 3,508,098 55978 | 3564076 !
= i J— . = |
Stategic Direclor of I |
Environment ! 20190602 | 4252613 24,4435 19556851 3929421 | 23486272 §
rShutegic Oirector of

Organisation Development,

Strategy & Performance 211035 39.850 2,150,236 2,026,350 185,483 2214873 |
Non Dislibuled Cost T 1.276,527) 11.276,527) 112845510 | 112845 5105

£ Lece

|Othar income and Expendthwre {51.029.108) (3.790.7¢%) (54.815.677) {46.654,437) | {4.356.149) | {51.00,7q8) |

lat 8%

19 37% 7313

dpenirg Genmat fund

|$urphn[ {Peficif) on General

Fund Balance In Yeor | 534,934 524210

g Gensrar Fana & 84931



M Uister Diztrict Counell
Notes to the Financkal Biatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

eraiture god Furiding Arolysis

This note provides a reconciliation of the main adjustments to Net Expenditure Chorgeable lo the General fund to anive at the amounis in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The refevant tronsfers between reserves ore explained in the Movement in
Reserves Statement

Ad| beh Funding and A 9 Bash

2021/22

Addieshment om Generat Fund to arnve o ine jusiments tor  Net Chanas o Dthar Stantory Ot e - Tatal

Compuehensive income and Bpendiue Caeral the Fens.on Egpustinenty stotul Adjutiments
Stalemen! Amaunts Futposes Adjusiments Acusimen

i 1
| |
1 3795 | 762,708 | 163,740 - | 963,243
— I . +
Service Director - Planning l - 127,661 | {45,745} | - 81918
Strotegic Drector of Communities & Place 3815866 | 3,165,639 {158,086} - 6,823,439
.l L ! |
Strategic Diector of Corporate Service / Finance 46.363 21,136 {36,088] =] - 31,411
Shategic Drector of Envienment | 2.308.186 2,090.895 | (186,662) | - 40,194 4252613
‘Sirategic Direcior of Crganisation Development, [ ]
Shrolepy & Perfomnance . | 33,545 il 45172 ! {38.857) it 39.880
Net Cost of Services I 6.240.775 | 8213211 {301.678) | 40,194 | 12,192,502
|Other Income and Expenditure from the (4.945,225) 1,233,000 | (38,350} | (40.194) | o (37%0.769)
Bxpenditure ond Funding Anolysis |
| | | |
ilference between Generol Fund surplus o1 Gofc 7446211 [340.028) (40,194} | 40,194 I 8.401,733

and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
|Stalement Sumptus or Deficit on the Provision of
tservices

Agjustorerts frem Genetof Fund 10 amivie at the Aapstmenk lar - Nel Change tor Derer Hohtary mer nan

Tomprahernsive licane oo Fxpenditine Capitat the Fensior Azustments srotutory

Stalement Amot Fuipnaasg Addjuskrents Adpustrenty
g = =l e e = :

Chial Executive 15,343 157,19 | 302214 | - 474,676 |

Service Direclor - Planning - 234,030 rI 52484 1 | 286,516

Strategic Diecior of Communities & Place 3,664.554 1.872.414 i 250,096 ) _5,787,()64_I

Shategic Dirgctor of Corporate Service / Finance ] 1l 55978 | - N 55,978 {

iStrategic Director of Environment l 2312478 1,281,253 307,616 L 28074 3929421 |

throlegic Director of Orgonisction Developmsnt, [

sShiategy 8 Perommance. | - 123,190 | 65,293 . - L - 1 18B483
—_— | : ! i - .

Net Cost of Services ] 5992,375 3,668,008 | 1,033,483 - 28074 10,722138

Other income and Expenditure from the |
iExpenditure and Funding Anolysis | {5.256.173) 967.000 {38,902) {28,074} | - {4,354,149)

- ¢ § Hm— e e

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit
and Comprehensiva Income and Expenditure |
Statement Sumlus or Deficit on the Provision af
Services

! 4,635,006 {28.074} | 28074 | 6,385.987
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Adjustments tor Capital Purposes
Adjustments to General Fund Balances to meet the requirements of generally accepted accounting practices, this column adds

in depreciation and impaiment and revaoluation gains ond losses in the services line and for:

i Other operating expenditure — adjusls for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts
written off for those ossefs.

iy Financing ond Investment incame and expenditure - the statutory charges for capital financing ie Minimum Revenue Provision
and other revenue contributions are deducted from financing and invesiment income and expenditure os these are not
chaoigeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

ii) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure ~ Capital grants are odjusted forincome not chargeable under

generally accepted occounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable
withaut conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specilic Gran! Income and
Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in

the year.
Net change for the Penslons

Net change for the removal of pension confributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure
and income:

For Services: this represents the removal of the employer pension contribulions made by the authority os allowed by statute and
the replacement wilh cuneni service costs and past service costs.

For Financing and investment income and expenditure: the net interest on the defined benelit liobility is charged to the CIES.

QOther statutory differences

Other statutory adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement and
amounts payablefreceivable to be recognised under statute:

For Financing and investmenl income and expenditure the other statulory adjustments column recognises adjustments to
General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.

The charge under Taxotion and non-specific grant income and expendilure represents the difference between what is
chargeable under statutory regulations for distict rotes and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and
the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.

Otlher non-statutory adjustments
Olher non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/crediled to service segments which need o be adjusted against

the 'Other income and expendilure from the Expenditure and Funding Analysis’ line to comply with the presentational
requirements in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slatement:

For financing and investment income and expendiure the cther non-statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to
service segments, eg for inferest income and expendifure and changes in the fair values of investment properies.

For taxation and nen-specific grant income and expendilure the other non-stotuory odjustments column recognised
adjustments to service segments. eg for unringfenced govemment grants.

The Council's reporiable segments are in ling with the Council's organisational stucture ot o directorate level.

This represents the council's share of the net movement on Tullyvar (as per note 25) excluding the revaluation reserve movement.
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Mid Uister Distriet Council
Nates fo the Financial Siatemnents
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2
Iq Seamental mcome and Expenditure

Income and expendiiure on ¢ segmential bosis are analysed befow:

Chief Execullve 1,582,672 7 - - - - - -
Service Director - Planning 1.773.956 1,427 i - . - - .
-+ —d SR

Shategic Direcior of

Communities & Ploce 4.853.214 23337 - - i i B = =
Sirategic Drector of

Corporote Service /

finonce 1,995,803 1,000 — - - - - -

Strotegic Director of
Environment 2,371,337 4137 l - - - -

Strotegic Director of

Organksofion Development,
Strotegy & Performance 193,223 8 - = . -
Non Distibuted Cost 1,594,430 -1 - - |

Total Income Analysed on
a segmental bosis | 14.354,635 30,509 = 2

Chiel Executive 2,984,186 210 : = [ 4 =

Service Divector - Planning 1,580.918 20,007 - -

Stealegic Drecior of
Communities & Place 3.586.796 5.403 - - - e |

Strategic Director of
Corporote Service /
Fnance 1,477,108 1,000 - - - - N |

Shategic Direclor of
Envionment | 1910744 7.960 - - - - =} .

\Strajegic Direclor of
Organisalion Development. |
Strategy & Performance 209,261 160 o=l | - - i | - -

Non Distribuled Cost 14.268.758 - - ’ i . = =

Tolat Income Analysed on
a segmental basis 26,218,471 34,740 - . - | - | -
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Mid Ulster District Councll
Notes te the Financlal Stalement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

K Expenditure ana income Anaiysea by Naoture

Expendilure Restated 2020,21

mpee Benefits Expenses : 28,107,660 - 2,175,582

Depreciation. Amortisation. Impairment 11 4,548,498 5,944,943
Interest Payments 9 206,474 236,433
Gain on the Disposal of Assets 8 {12,153) {94,873}
Other Expenditure 32,563,577 31,196,531
Total Expenditure B 67,414,056 85,461,616

®estetod 2020721

e o a—

. e " = = == —
Interest and Investment Income b (6,059} {5.329)

District rate Income 10 {39.238,819} 139,421,802}
Government grants and Contributions 10 (17,002,320} (12,692,215}
Covid-19 Income {1.680.029) {15,752.664)
Other Income {12,768,824) {10.602,830)
Total Income (70,694,051}  {78.474,840)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services - O (32B1995) (13,013,224)

[ Fevenue tom contracts with service recipients

The Council has canied oul an assessment of the impact of IFRS 15 by reviewing allincome and has identified no matericl revenue
confracts with service recipients.

Adjusimenis hetween on Accounting Easis and Funding Basis under Regulations

Amaounts incluced in the Comprehensve Income and Expenditure Slalement but requined by slalute to be excludec when
determiming the Movemen! on the General Fund Balance lor the yaar.

- ] H | T
Amounts Included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when
delermining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Revaluation increases/decrecses taken to

Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 1 (307.722) 47.432

Depreciation charged in the ysar en non-current

assets 1 46,548,498 6,240,776 5,944,943 5,992,375
Net Revenue expenditure funded from copital

under statule 12 199.897 242,735
Carmying amount of non curent assets sald 8 41.556 7.410

Proceeds from Jhe sale of PP&E, investment

property and intangible assets 23 {53.709) {12.153) (102,283} {94.873)
Net charges made for retirement benefits in

accordance with 1AS 19 20 11.214.000 8.640,000

EMpIOYErs CONMDUNONS payaie 1o The NiLLUSL
ond refrement benefits payable direct fo

pensioners 20 {4.469,789) {4,004,994}
Capilal Gronts and Donated Assets Receivable

and Applied in yeor 10 (2.352,547) {2.821,125)
Adjustments in relation to Short-term compensated

absences 24 {501.575) 790,947
Provisions Discoun! Rate Reserve Adjustment 24 {38,350} {38.902)
A s not included In the Comprehensi

{ncome and Expenditure Statement but reguired by
stalute te be included when delermining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the

year
Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital
investment 23 {2,580.525) (2.340.176)

E.401.734 & 364,987



ket ransters [l rom slolfulory and ot

20200

earmatked reserves

capll Fund
Other 23 {10,500,000} {10.500,000} (10,000,000) (10,000,000} |
QOther Funds and earmarked reservas
From Other funds 1646.795) (8.855,001) |
Other 23 - (648,795} - {8.855,001}
Unusable reserves
Capital Adjusiment Account - - -

(11,148,795} (18.855,001) |

[ ¢ ost of Services on Continving Operations
[ Senero' power of competence

Prior to Local Gevernment Reform on 1st Aprif 2015, expenditure for special puposes was limited under Section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Act (Nerthern Ireland) 2011. This section wos repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act

{Northem irelond) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Lacal Government Act (Northerm iretand) 2014, the Cauncil has the power to do anything thot individuals
generally may do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not limited to
benefitling the area or its residents nor is it limited by existing powers.

The actuol expenditure under the power of competence omounted 1o £0 during 2021/22 [£0 in 2020/21).

[} Exteinal Audil Feey

The Council hos incuned the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Stalement of Accounts, cerlification of grani ¢laims
ond other services provided by the Councils external auditors.

The other fees of £13,100 {2020/21 £20,000} were incurred in respect of performance oudil services provided by the appointed
auditor,

Dperoling and lLases

Council oy Lesior

The Council Jeases out property and equipment under operoting leases for the foflowing pumoses:

- for the provision of community services, such as sporfs focilities, 3ourism services and community cenires
- for economic development purposes to provide suitoble affordable accommodation for local businesses.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in fulure years are:

315t March 2027 35t March 2021
[Not Ister than 1 year 62685 1
Lcter than | year and no later thon S years B | B 240,290 | - 250,217 |
432371 | 485,129

[Later than 5 y.

The Council has no finonce leases.



The Council has acquired ifs office photocopiers and printers by entering info operafing leases with fypical lives of 5 years.

The future minimum lease paymenis due under non-cancellable lsases in fulure years are:

31st Morch 2022 3ist March 2021

Mol [ofer than | yeor ] 88,326 - 98,968

Laler than 1 year and no later than § years - 324,860 335.224
Later than 5 vaars 568,686 648,772

72 1082 %84

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were made or received. No sublease income is expected as alf assets held
under operating lease agreements are used exclusively by the Council.

The expendilure charged to the Business Change line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement during the yeorin
retafion to these leases was:

202122

[rAIPITmum lEam® paamEn

119 D5¢ |

Employee Costs and Member Allawances
Stott Costs

2021722

Sciar-es ond Wages
Emptoyers MIC -
Frrp ayen Superannuation

1,940.841 | 1,547,601
4,066,054 | 4,117,145

28 107 6¢0

tn addition, agency cosfs during the year amounted to £126.133 {2020/21 £177.750).

The Council's cument contiibulion rate 1o NILGOSC scheme is 19.5%.

Al last actuarial valuation dated 31st March 2019 the funds assets meet 112% of fiabilities ot that date {2016-9.6%).

A ge Number of Employ - where FIE rep ts fullime equlvatent employ
207021
Chief Executive 39 | 50
Service Director - Planning . i 38 42
Strategic Director of Communities & Ploce 264 269
%ﬂegic Director of Corporote Service / Finance — |—— 31 34
Siralegic Director of Environment 322 323
Strategic Director of Organisation Devetopment, Strategy & Performance . 57 53

Full-ime twreben employed
Part-time rumpon aingloyen
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[ ‘eniot Employees Remuneralion

£50.0C1 fa 146,000
60001 ic £70.050
£70,001 1o £80,000

£80.007 o £90.0000
£90.001 ko £100 Q00

£700.001 0 2110000 —

L] Members Allowonces

Eauc allanonce o 617,085 | 619384
[ayors & Depuly Moyees Alowance - 21,900 | 21,500 |
Speciol Responsic ity Afcwant 23 ) 48,500 48,500
Empiove coi T ] o 176,276 177376 |
B o 9.682 12,619
5.554 3,272

MY Northein ielone Civil Service Pensian Altangementy

As @ resull of Reform on st April 2015, slaff fronsfered from Central Government to the Council are members of the Northem

Ireland Clvil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern reland Civil Service Pension arangements ore unfunded mulii-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Depariment for Communilies is unable to identily its share of the underlying assets and liabilities, The most up to date actuarial
valuation was camed out as at 31 March 2016, This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated fo reflect
current conditions and rolled forward fo the reporting date of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts

as at 31 March 2022,

For 2021/22. employers' coniributions of £303,025 were payable fo the NICS pension arangements at one of faur rates in the range

28.7% to 34.2% of pensionable pay. based on salary bands.

The scheme’s Achuary reviews employer contributions every four years following @ full scheme valuation. A new scheme funding
valuation based on data as at 31 March 2016 was completed by the Actuary during 2018-19. This valuation was used fo determine
amployer contiibution rates for the intraduction of a new career average earning schems from April 2019, The contribution rates
are set to meet the cost of the benefis accruing during 2021/22 1o be paid when the member retires, and not the benefils poid

during this period to existing pensioners.

No persons relired early on ill-health grounds os such the actuariol cost for employees for the eorly poyment of retirement banefits

was £nih.

[ Jll Other Operoling Income & Expenditur®

[ surptus ‘Deficit on Hon-Cunent Assets (exciinvestmenl Froperhes)

Pisceeds from sale

{53,709}

(102283 |

Canying amount of non-current
assets sold jexcl Investment
Properties)

Other Operoting Expenditure

41,556

7410

{12.153)

(94873)

{12,155
{12 153)

2020721

194 873}
(94.873)

(2l Financing ond Investmeni lncome and Expendiuie

'] inferest Poyabkle and Similar Charge)

Govemment Loan Inferest

236433 |

Y7 236,433 |

n



Bank Inferest 6,059 5.32%

§059 | 5329

Pensions interest cosls and expacied refurn on pension: assett

Net interest on the net defined
benefit ability (asset) 1.233,000

_|
1,233,000 967.000 |

Financing and Investment Income
aad [xpendiiure

Interest Payable and Similar

IChcrges 206,474 | 206,474 236,433 | 236,433
Ilnferestcnd Invesimeni Income i - (6.05%) (6,059) {5.329) | (5.329)
[Pensicns ir-teres! 2ost 1,233,000 1,233,000 967.000 i 967.000

{6 059) 1423435 1.203.433 1,198 104

(14,649,773} {9,871,090}

(14,649.773) {9.871,090)

[4 Capital Gronds ond Donated Assels - Apphed

‘ {2,352,547) | (2.821.!25)J

Government & Other Grants -
Conditions met and applied in
year

}7 {2.352,547) {2.821.125] |

2021422

37.238.819) | 39.040,083) |

Cument year
| - (381.719} |
- 4%

Finalisation - ofheryears

| I (—
T (37.228819) | (39.421,802) |

2021/22 2020:21

Taxsfion and Non Speciic Gror? income

Dastrict ®ete Income. (39,238,819) |  [39.421.802)
Reven..g Grants | (14,649,773) (9.871,0%0)
Capilal Grants and Confributions [ {2.352.547} {2.821,125)

(56 241.139)  (52.114.017)
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Mid Ulster District Counclt
Notes fo the Financlal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 37 MARCH 2022

12

Revaluations

Voluations - Vaoluations of Land and Buildings are camied out externally by Land and Property Services {LPS), in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institufion of Chertered Surveyors (RICS}. Af the
valvation date, LPS notes that property markets are mostly functioning again, with fransaction volumes and other relevant evidence at
or retuming to levels where an adequate quantum of market evidence exists upon which fo base opinions of value. Accordingly, LPS
valuations are not reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ os defined by VPS 3 ond VPGA 10 of the RICS Vaiuation -

Global Stondards.

O A~ T T R e S — T e e

Intangible assets relate to purchased licensed software and related implementation costs with a net book value of £369,627 and a
gross cost befare amortisafion of £463,160: and the purchase of market rights with a gross cost and net carying amount of of £89,24é.

202122

Intangibie Assets

W T = i

Balance af start of year:

Gross camying amounts

Accumulated amorlisation -

Net canying amount af start of year -

Amortisation for the period 73.520 -
458.468 -

Other Changes
384,948

Camprising:
Gross camying amounts 463,160 -
78212 -

Accumulaied amorlisation
: A 384 948

] Hanitnge Assels

Vi o

Heritage Assets consist of the Chairman's Chains of Office and a water colour painting thal previously belonged to the legacy councils.
These councils were dissolved on the 31 March 2015,

Capilal Expendiivre and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the yeor is shawn in the table below {including the value of assels acquired under
leases and PFl conracts), together with the resources that have been used ta finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in
future years by charges o revenue as assets are used by the Councl, the expenditure resulls in anincrease in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CF}, a measure of the capital expenditure incumed historically by the Councl that is yel to be financed. The CFRis
analysed in the second part of this nate.

Copital Expenditure

DOpening Capital Financing Requirement | 3 23,615,630 |
1 i — AN |
ICapital Investment = ) R [ — —
Property. Piant and Equipment = = b 6,897,965 7,123,229
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
|

- _ _ | 1 199.897 | 242735
Sources of inance o B i
|Govemment Grants and Other Contributions [ 10 (2,352,547) (2.821,125) |
Transfers from Eammarked Reserves | {15,000,000) -
Sums set aside from Revenue: B (| |- i A
‘M_inimqm Revenue Provision | - (2.580,525) {2,340,176) |

12.985.083

Closing Copital Financing kequoement

Expglanation of Movemenis in Year 021,22

Decrease) / Increose in underlying need fo borow (12,535,231
increase/(decrease} in Capal financing Requircment

LESN Future Capitat Commitinents

1.204.653

The Council has an ongoing prograrnme of capital works and the estimaled commitment remaining on schemes
which are underway is £4m, the largest project included within this is the Magherafelt Recycling Centre/ Waste
Transfer Redevelopment at £1.5m.
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Restaled 2020/21
L

Crvuae | S erso]
2,010,413 2117596
B - 1,399,269 1,428,951
B 260,674 253,973
— 338,567 | 336,243
[Trade receivables - - o 406,883 | 293,396
Impamment ioss - Jrade receivaoies {226,952} {234,995)

14.928.082

2564 %71

637,925 ave s

B 1,003,374 1,310,263

1,002,776 1,144,839

- 1,440,973 1,629,542

4 084 648

4 T80 Abb

Gavernment (oo Fund

Totg? Borrowng

Creditors
By snort Term Creditors

17

4780 670

021,22

£

5 455 789

Restotea 2020 21

169.496 W3 987

- B 270,314 37,469

o ] ] 1,816,869 1,401,442

B 765,312 1,266,887

B I 33,408 37,419

0 = i 3988674  1.217.778

[freoe craal i | 7,495,548 9,619,479
[Dtear - ) [ o 405,241 395.216

[

Lotgl $ho Teom Creaiho

Tabgl Cop-chbens

14944 862

14 534 B3

14.17%.677

14.179,677

|1 Payment of invoices

The council hos o target, where no other terms are agreed. of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days.
During the year the Council paid 20,237 invoices totaling £54,787.101

The number of disputed invoices were 57.

The Council poid:

19,953 (99%) invoices within 30 calendar days target:

18.790 {93%) inveices within 10 working days target: and

284 invoices outside of the 30 day target.
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¢

Provisions

fncrease in tntergst cost
Bolunce as of provision Ullised dwring Unused emounts  ang-or discounl Bolonce as ot 31
1 April 2021 during vear year reversed roie ctanges Moreh 2022
£ 0 i L i L

Landfil Closure 1 | (s2389) 1,601,267
Mullyvor 16| 19,331 - - | (13.187) | 101,840 |
[Other _ 656,403 | - (6937) | (449.486] | - -
2436 194 28,932 (6.937) (649.456¢) 1105.578) 1 703 147
I—_C_urr_eni Provisions | -] - . = - = -
lLong Term Provisions | 2436194 28932 (69371 | (649,466) {105,576 | 1703347 |

24341794 [6.937] (64% 48£) (105 574}

Compaorative Yeor

Increase in Inferest cost Reslated Balance
Balance as af provision Ulilised duing Unused amounts  andror discoun!  as at 31 Maich
Provisions 1 Apiil 2020 during year year reversed tate changes 2021

£ £ i £ L £
Landfill Clasure 1,638,408 (50815 1L11% - 64,863 1,684,075 |
Tullyvar | 142,655 [ (56,226) {31.410) - . 20,697 95,714
Other e [ ﬂ]?A_J ] {134,391} - - | 656403

2592057 {106 741) {154 682} 105 540 2.436 194

[Long Term Provisions ~ | 2592057 (106741) | {154,682} - [ ossén] 2,436,194 |

(106.741) {154.482) 105 560 2434 194

Landfill Closure

The Council has provided for the cost of closing its landfill sites at Ballymacombs and Magheraglass Landfill Site. The provision is based
on estimated discounted cashflows over a 27 year period in accordance wilh NIEA guidance. Discount factors relevant to the cost of
financing of the obligation by Council were used in the discounting calculation. The estimated cashflows were calculated by Council
officers in conjunction with professionally quafified experts who previously undertook an assessment of site clasure costs.

Tuilyvar

For details of Tullyvar landfill site provision, see Note 25.

Other

The Council hos reversed provisions previously made for potential future uninsured losses.

financial insttuments

Categoties of Finonclal Inskruments

The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types idenfified below in its dealings with Financial instruments.
Financial Assets as ol 31 March 2022

Non-Current Current
investments Debters investments Deblors

[
406,833

Lrnpisen ©oit

Total Financlal Assets - i - 406,883 406,863
Total = S|== = - 406883 406,883 |

financlol Assels as at 31 March 2021

Non-Cunent Cunent
investmenis Gebtors ipvestments Deblors
£
) ) N 293,376 | 293,396 |
Total Finoncial Assets | . - - R 293,396 | 293,396 |
[Total ] — 1 - - - 293396 |  293.3%

Financial Uabliifies as at 31 March 2022

Non-Current Cunent
Borrowings Credilors Bonowings Creadors
¥

[rrofisea cox ] 4,084,648 _=11f 696,022 7495548 12,276,218 |
Totat financiol liabllifies 4,084,648 - | 696022 7495548 12,276,218 |
[Total | 4084648 | 696022 7.495548 | 12,276,218 |
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Anancial Uabiities as at 31 March 2021 Restated

Non-Curnent Current

Barrocwings Creditors Bornrowings Creditors

£ = £
|Amortised cost 4,780,666 | e79a28 9,619,479 15,079,268
Tolal financial flabilifies 4,780,866 679123 9819479 15.079.248
[rotal 4780666 - 679.123 9,619,479 15.079.268 |

315t March 2033 31st March 2021
Carnrying Fair value Carnying Fair volue
Fingncial Liabinties amaount amount

£ £

Financial iabiities held ot |
\omortised cost 4,780,670 5,183,308 5,459,789 6.416,853

Total | 4,780,670 5,183,308 5.459.789 6,416,853 |

[} Participation in the Northern lrefana Lacal Government Ofiicers Fension Fund

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of ils officers and other employees, the Counclil offers refirement benefils. Although
these benefifs will not actually be poyable uniil employees refire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need 1o
be disclosed at the time that employees eam their future entitierment.

The Council participates in the Northem Ireland Local Govemment Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local

Govemment Officers' Superannuation Committee. This is a funded scheme, meaning thai the Council ond employees pay contributions
into a fund. calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's Tabilifies with investment assets.

b Ttansactions relating to refi 1t benefils . Comprehensive i and Expenditure Statement Charges:

The Council recognises the cost of refirement benefits in the Cost of Services en Canfinuing Operations when they are eared by
employees, rather thon when the benefits are eventually paid os pensions.

However, the chorge Ihe Council is required to make against district rates is based on the cosh payable in the year, and the real cost of
retirement benefits is reversed out In the adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement
on Reserves Statement,

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustments between
accounting basis & funding basis under regulations fine, in the Movement on Reserves Statement duiing the year:

Net cost of services: _'
Cument service cost o - — | 10,162,000 | 7,581 OOD
Past service cost/{gain} - 521,000 112, 000
Net Interest on net defined benefit Liability (assat) - l | 1,233,000 967.000
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or Deficil on the Provision 1
of Services - - 1 o 11914000 | 8,640,000
L | | [
Movemenl in Reserves Statement: | o |
Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefifs in occorclonce wdh A5 19| |
and the Code R 4 1 (11,918,000) ~ {8,640.000}
Employers' contributions payable to scheme il 4,469,789 |  4.004.994

MNel odiviiment o Senerol Funa (7445211} {4,635 DO4)
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The service cost figures include an allowance for administrofion expenses of £103,000.

Remeasuiements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure 2021722
|
lLiakility gains/{losses) due 1o chcr_\_ge_in assumptions - - 15,902,000 (40,780,000} ]
Liability gains/{losses} due io due to demogrophic changes } 2,120,000 .. - ]
Liability experience gains/{losses) arising in the year B R {469,000) 1,404,000
Actuarial gains/{losses} on plan assets 2,992,000 | 27.044.000
(83.789) 66,008

Other i

20451211

{12.265 994}

| Assets and liobilities in telalion lo retitement benelits

Recconciliofion ol present volue of the scheme liobilities

214,199,405 | 165,013,415 |
30,162,000 7.561,000
interes o5l o I ] 4,485,000 | 3,781,000
Conmbulions by mEMDEs 1,248,600 1,277,000
Remaasremen! (gains) ond losses: 5
T [Acwarniol gaims/iosses orising from chonges in financiol assumpfions 1 ] (15,902,000 40,780,000
Actuarial gains/losses arising from demographic changes | B {2,120,000) B -
Actuarial gains/losses arising on liabifities from experience | il i 469,000 {1,404,000} |
Ofher {if applicable) ) o 83,789 {46.006)
Pasl service costs/{gains) - - T 521,000 112,000
Estimated unfunded benefiis poid | (15.000}) (15.000}
Esfimated benefits paid — ] {2.851,000) {2.840.000)

25 01 | Aprl 171,032,415

[irpeies niome B ——— ] 3252000 | 2,814,000
Cor = | Lymembes B 1 1,248,000 1.277.000
‘Cort <7 L. employer - B - ] 4,454,789 3,989,994
TS0 espect of unfunded benefits. ] B 15,000 15,000

5 ont gaini o) — 2.992,000 27,044,000 |
pann o N {15.000) (15,000
B S | (2,851,000) {2.840,000)

Salonce os of 3! March

153.317 409

The expected retum on scheme assels is defermined by considering the expected refurns avaiable on the assets underlying the current
investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as ot the Balance Sheei date.
Expected retums on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of retumn experienced in the respective markets.

The actual retum on scheme assels in the year was a gain of £6,244,000 {2020/21 gain of £29,858,000).

2021722

£

Fair Volue ol Plan Assels

2020: 21
£

65,946,174 71432074

o o 42069111 54,769,869

5 o B 17,704,741 13,654,113
Cast B — o 10,070,598 8,131,101 |
Other B ———— 24,638,356 5.829.846

142 429 000 153,417 000

The above assel values are at bid value as required by JAS 19.

79



The Council's share of the Net Pension Liability {included in the Balance Sheet):

2021/22 2020/21
£ £

Fair Value of Employer Assets 142,413,198 153,317,409
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (210,070,198) (213,966.,409)
Pension asset/{liability} of Funded Scheme {47,657,000) {60,649,000)
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation {210,000} {233,000)
Net asset/(llability) arising from the defined benefit obligati (47.867.000) (60.882,000)
Amount in the Balance sheet:

Liabilities {47,867,000) (60,882,000}

Ne! Assel/{Liability) (47,867,000) {60,882,000)

[:]1Scheme History

Analysis of scheme assets and liabilities 2021722 2020/21

£ £
Fair Value of Asssls in pension scheme 162,413,198 153,317,409
Frasent Volue of Defined Benefit Obligation (210,280,198) (214.,199,409)
Surplus/{deficit) in the Scheme (47.867,000) (60,882,000}
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure: 2021,/22 2020/21

£ £
Actuarial goins/{losses) 17,469.211 (3%.309.994)
Expected Retun on Plan Assets 2,992,000 27,044,000
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 20,461,211 (12,265,994}
Cumulative actuarial gains and losses 8,195,217 (12,265,994)

History of experience gains and losses:

Experience gains and (losses} on assets 2,992,000 27,044,000
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The
total liability of £40,867,000 has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the Balance
Sheet.

However, statutory amangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains
healthy. The deficit on the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by
increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, assessed by the scheme actuary.

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to

31/03/2022

Frojected cument cosi
Met Interassl on the nel defined bensfil llacility (asset]

10,702.000

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund by the
council in the year to 31 March 2022 is £9,464,000.

History of experience gains and losses

The actuarial gains/losses identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2021/22 can be analysed into the
following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liobilities at 31 March 2022.

2021/22 2020/21

Experience [gains and {losses) on Assets




M Boin lor estimaling assets ond liobilihes
Liabilifies have beer assessen on an acluariot basis using the projected unit method, on estimate of the pensions thai will be payable in
the future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, elc. The Council's Fund liabilifies have teen assessed by
Aon Hewitt Limiled, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Councll fund being based on data pertaining to the latest full

volualion of the scheme as at 31 March 2022,

Pension scheme assumplions’

Mol‘fﬂhhl' sy umpnnm

4 é ‘gnl pensioners: Years Years

o - il 218 21.9
'Women - 25.0 B 251
Longevily at 65 for future pensioners: — o ] ]
Men == B ] 232] 233
Women - B - = 26.4] 265
Inflafion/Pension Increase Rate - - — so0A 2.70%:
[Salary Increase Rate o 1 450% 420%
Expected Retum on Assets - B 300% 2.70%
[Discaunt Rate —— - o 2.70% 2.10%
[Pension accounts revaluation rate = R - X1 2.70%

Papion Aiumpliony Semifivity Aoy b

The pension figures disclosed in these financial staternents are sensitive 1o the assumptions used.

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined henefit obligation as at 31 March

2022 s set oul below.

In each case. only the ossumption noted below is altered: all other assumptions remain the same and are summarnsed
above.

Funded Pension Scheme Benefits

in the disclosure

[Discourt Rate Assum : ———~ E—
‘Adjustment 1o discount rote - i - — B0azpa -0.1%p.a.
Presen! value of the total obhgahon - | 205,884,000 214,498 000
% change in the present value of the fotal obligation S 200% 2 10%,
Projected service cost o 9033000 9,805,000 |
Approximate % change in projecied service cost — ~ 3.50%, 3.60%
|
Rafe of General Increase In Salarles — - - i I ]
|Adjusiment to salary increase rate B = +0.1%p.a. 1-0.1%p.a. |
Present value of the fotal obligation o B 211,136,000 209,036,000
% change in The present value of the fotal obligation - - - 0.50% | 0.50%
Projected service cost B ~9.464.000 9,464,000 |
Approximate % change in projected service cost - 0.00% 0.00%|
[Rate of I to P In Payment and Defenred Pension A fi - B
[Adjustment to pension increase rate e E——— [+047pa. -D.1%p.0.
'Present value of the total obligation ) 213,447,000 206,935.000
% c_:_honge in the present value of the total abligation - - 1.60%| -1.50%
Projecfed service cost - B - il 9.805000 |  9.133.000 |
Approxlrnore % change in projected serwce cos1 3. 60% -3.50%
|Post Refi t Mortality Assumption o - il |
|Adjustment to mortality age rating assumpfion* - -1 Year +1Year B
Presem value of the total obligation - 217,439.000 202.733.000
% change in the present value of the total obligation - : 3.50% -3.50%
[Projected service cost o = _ 9.843.000 9.095,000
|Approximate % change in projected service cost 4.00% -3.90%!

* Arating of +! year means that members are assumed o follow the morfalily patiem of the base table above forani
year otder than that,

individual thatis 1
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Maojor categories of plan assets as percentoge ol tola! plan assels.

The Northem Ireland Local Govemment Officers’ Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categories, by proporiion of the total
assets held:

31/03/2022 31/03/2022
= =

. . E— i 24,10% 23.60%
R = 1.8 12.10%
10.90% 8.90%

- - _ ' 6.20%  530%

o T 16.40%| 3.80%

100.00% 100.00%

[:] Ncrthern Ireland Civil Service Pension Artangements

The Northem Ireland Civil Service Pension amangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefil schemes but the Council &
unable to identify ils share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up to date actuarial valuation was cared out as at 31/03/21
This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updoted 1o reflect curent conditions and rolled forward io the reporting
date of the DoF Superannuation and Other Allowonces Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2022,

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were confracted out of the state
pension prior to 6 Apnl 1997. At present there is an inequality of benefits between male and female members who have GMP.
Although the Gavernment intends that GMP should be equalised, at present it is not clear how this egualisation will be implemenied. In
July 2014 the Govemment stated an intention to develop fully considered proposals and to publish guidance when ihs work is
completed. bul no torget date was given. The impact of any liabilities relating to the Councilis therefore uncertain and no provision

has been made in these financial statements.

W Corgenes

In accordance with the Code (and IAS 37), Councils should disclese by way of note if there is a possible obligotion arising from past
events and whose existence will be confimed only by the occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the authority, or a present cbligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

a Contingent Liabljifies
a) it is not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required 1o settle the

obligation, or
b} the amount of the obligation cannat be measured with sufficient refiability.

There are a number of legal claims in which Council is @ defendont. 1t is uncertoin whether these cases will proceed 1o cour or if they
do, the courts will have reached a decisionin relation to them by 31 March 2022. Council is of the opinion that, in the majority of cases,
it is not probable that an oulflow of resources will be required to settle the claim. Councilis also of the opinion that, in any event, it is not
possible to make a sufficiently refiable estimoate of potential contingent liabilities for disclosure purposes. Where legal claims predate
the formotion of the Council, i.e. the defendant was originally one of the former legocy councils, there has been no change in the
amount recognised as a potential akility al 31 March 2022 as there has been no change in Council's assessment of the probabiity of a

negative outcome for Councll in relation o the claim.

Council also owns hwo landfill sites and a 50% share with Fermanagh Omagh Distiict Council in & third landfill site. Although Council has
plans to close and cop these sites it is required to make financial provision for closure and aftercare costs of its landfill sites. Further
disclosure of the estimoted costs is included at notes 18 ond 25.

b Conlingent Assels
The Council, together with the other 10 distici councils in NI, is participating in a legal ocfion against HMRC to recover previously
overdeclared oulput VAT in respect of leisure and recreational income, which arose because HMRC did (and continues to) not accept
that the Council provides leisure and recreational activities pursuant to a special legal regime without causing any significant distortion
of compestitlon. Although the Council succeeded in lis claim 1o the First Tier Tox Tribunal, which issued its decisionin lote 2020, HMRC
subsequently lodged on application to appeal 1o the Upper Tier Tax Tibunal. The application to lodge on appeal was successful and
was heard by the Upper Tier Tibunal in May 2022. The Tribunal has yet to release its decision and therefore, at this stage, it's too early to
access any associated financial impacl, but If the appeal is dismissed, the benefit to the Council could approximate to £4 million.
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Mid Ulster District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

F¥3l Othe: cash flow disclosures
PYY Analysis of Adjusiments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit an the provision of services

for noncash movements 2021422 2020/21
£
Depreciation 11 6,548,498 5,944,943
Impairment & downward revaluations '& non-sale
derecognitions) 11 {307.722) 47,432
Increase}/Decrease In inventories (70,728) {4.351)
Increase}/Decrease in Debtors {6.176,137) (2,062,034}
Increase/{decrease] in impainment provision for bad debfs (8.043) 32,078
Increase/[Decrease) in Creditors 1,397,392 3,005,679
Payments to NILGOSC 20 7.446,211 4,635,006
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 8 41,556 7.410
Coninoutions to Other Reserves/Provisions {733,047} {155,863)
8137 989 11,450,300

l Adjust for ifems included in the net surplus or deficit on the

provision of services that are investing and financing 2020/21

£

Noies 2021722
£

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
intangible assets

Capital grants included in “Taxation & non-specific grant
income™

{53.709) (102,283}

{2.352,547) (2,821,125)

I Co<h and Cash Equivolents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement. cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and
short term deposits and investments {considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdratts. Cash
and cash equivalents af the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled

to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

£

35,052,532 31,020,778
35052 532 31,020,778

Cuash and Bank balances

[ Opelo g A
The cast tiows from operating ooy
Interest recaived

6,059 5329 |

In_te_resf pcﬁ B

L

2021;22

Il Cash Hows kkom investing Activities
= (3 £
Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible {7.530,171) | {6,381,358)
Procee s rom the sale o PP&E, investmeni property ang
intangible assets 53,709 102,283
Capital Grants and Contributions Received 3,173,616 2,572,051 |
(4.302.846) (3.707.,024)

Mel Cash llows from Invesfing Activilies



2021722

Py Cash llaws from Financing Aclivities

Repoyment of Shart anc Term Bomowing (679.117] 654,951
Net Cash llows from Financing Activilies

PXIll Usable Reserves
[ Capital Receipts Reserve

These are capital receipts which have originoted primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used to
finance capital expenditure.

(679.119) (654.959)

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset soles and other monies defined by
statute as capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Receipts
Reserve. The reserve is written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to
reduce an authority's capital financing requirement {or used for ather pumposes pemitted by statute}.

Copital Receipls Reserve Notes 31/03/72022 31/03,/2021
£ £
At 1 April — 398,814 296,531
Movement
53,709 102,283
Al 31 March 452 523 398.814

;] Capital Fund

This fund wos established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the act
was repedled under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothem Ireland} 2011, Councils should disclose details
where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Copital Fund 31/03/2022 3170372021

£ £
At 1 April - 26,322,882 16,322,882 |
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General |
Fund 10,560,000 10,000,000 |
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA o finance Copital J
Expenditure 12 (15,000.000) -
At 3) March 21822882 26,322,882

P4 Renewal and Repairs Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act
was repealed under the Local Government finance Act [Nothern Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose details
where any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

kenewal and Repoirs Fund

At 1 April -

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
[Fund |
Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAAfo finance
C_qpital Expenditure 12 -

Al 31 March
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'] Other Baolances & Reserves

Otter Balances & Reserves

31/03/2022

31/03/2021

£ £
At 1 April 13,699.578 4,844,577
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General
Fund 4 646,795 8,855.001

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting proctices, rather than the amount to be funded from Disirict Rates. Councils raise rates to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General Fund

Notes

31/03/2022

31/03:2021

Al 31 March

3 £

At 1 Aol B 6,362,984 5,838,774
Apclied Capital Grants 10,12 [2.352,547] (2,821,125} |
De:reciation and Impairment adiustiment 4 6,240,776 5592375
Statutory Provision for financina Capital Investment 4 (2,580.525) {2.340,176) |
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute N 4,12 199,897 242,735
Surplus/ Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES 3.281,995 13,013,224
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the
General fund 4 (11,146,795} | (18,855.001)
Net movemenis on Pension Reserve 4,20 7,446,211 4,435,006
Disoosal of Fixed Assets/Cacital Sales 3,4,11,23 (12,153} {94.873)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
colculated on an accounting baosis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements (501,575} 790,947
Other Movements {38,350} {38,902}

4.899.918 6.362,984
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FZ A Unuseable Reserves
8] Capital Adjustment Account

The Capilal Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of

those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment
losses and amortisations are chorged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling
postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures fo an historic cost basis.

The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisifion,
construction and subsequent costs.

The Account coniains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properfies and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet 1o be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008,
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created fo hotd such gains.

31/03/2022

Copital Adjusiment Accouni

£] £
At 1 April 65,440,413 64,667,461
Applied Copital Grants 10,12 2,352,547 | 2,821,125
Depreciation & impairment adjustment 11 {6,240.776} (5,992,375}
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 4,12 2,580,525 2,340,176
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 4,12 (199.897) (242,735} |
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capifal Sales 4,11 (41,556) (7.410) |
Other Movements 1,727,597 1,854,171
Transfers beiween Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & |
CAA o finance copital expenditure 12 ] 15000000 | -
At 31 March 80.618.853 §5.440 413

["Revaiuntion Reserve

The Revaluotion Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plan! and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the dote the reserve was created.
Accumulaied gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a bolance based on the revaluation {upwards or downwards} of
individual assets. All such revaluations {excluding impairment losses that have been debited fo Surplus/(Deficit) on
the Provision of Services are mirrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamenial
principle of this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised,
the balance held on the Revatuation Reserve is written off fo the Capital Adjustment Accouni.

31,03/2022 31/C372021

Revaluatian keserve Noles

£ £|
ALY Apiil o - 49,062,006 | 51,319,552
Revaluation & Impairment 11 1 6,582,752 (403,375)
JOﬂler Movements {1.727.597} {1.854,171) i
53.217.161% 47 062006

At 31 March



[4 Pension Reserve

Pension Reseive Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
£ £
ALY APl _ {60.882,000) | (43,981,000} |
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,20 {7.446,211) (4,635,006} |
Revaluation & Impairment B 20 20,461,211 (12,265,994} }
4131 March (47.867.000)  (40.882.000}

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the fiming differences arising from the different arongements for accounting for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accauns for
post-employment benefits in the Comphensive Income and Expenditure Statement as benefits are eamed by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised 1o reflect inflation, changing assumptions
and invesiment retums on any resources set aside to meet the costs

However, statutory arangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer's
contriibutions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits eamed by past and curent
employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arangements will ensure that
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come fo be paid.

[} Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that waould otherwise orise on the General Fund
balance from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
entitlement canied forward at the end of the financial year. Statutory amangements are expecied to require that
the impact on the General Fund is neutralised by fransfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

31/03/2022 31703:2021
. = £
At 1 Aprit {1.266.887} (475,940) |
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accaunting basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 501,575 {790.947)

Accumulated Absences Account

a! 31 March (765.312) (1.266,687)

I Provisions Discount Rale Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the amangement, put in ploce by the Department under its
amendment to the 2017/18 accounts direction {see DIC circulor 17/18), to cliow for mitigation of the costs not
allowed for by Councils who had adopted the HM Treasury Cenfral Government discount rafe for long-term
provisions such as Landfill costs.

subject to agreement with the Depariment, this amangement allows o council fo spread the cost of the impact of
discount rate changes over a peried of not more than é years.

Prowisions Discount Rate Reserve Notes 31/03/2022 3170372021
= £ £

At 1 April - {1,011,558) (1,050,460} |

Difference between finance and other costs and income |

calculated on an accouniing basis and finance costs

calculated in accordance with statutory requirements 38,350 38,902

Al 31 March {973.208) (1 011.558)
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P13l Joint Arrangementt

Tullyvar Joint Committee is a landfil site jointly owned and managed by Mid Ulster District Council and Fermanagh
and Omagh District Council.

The financial provision for landfill capping and aftercare costs was reviewed in the year and discounted in
accordance with IAS 37, this resulted in a total discounted provision of £551,989 {2020/21 £717,511). An amount of
£348,267, {2020/21 £526,078) has been offset against this provision resulting in a net discounted provison of £203,720
[2020/21 £191.433). Also, in accordance with 1AS 37, the provision is based on the percentage utilisation of the site
which is curently 100%, no change from previous year. This is in line with the curent management position that the
site is curently filled and has been capped / closed since March 2020. A review undertaken by WDR & RT Taggart
resulted in a reduction in the number of years the site is predicted to require oftercare to 19 years. The previous
review in 2014 was based on an affercare period of 40 years which was the standard at the time ond the period

recommended by the NIEA.

Golder Associates previously reviewed the site gas generation potential and modelled the income projection.
Their model has been reviewed by management to reflect more recent actual gas generation and income figures.
The future projected discounted gas income is £348,269 over the next 6 years (2020/21 £526,078).

The value of Mid Ulster's investment in Tullyvar is £1,840,994 (2020/21 £1,957.321) which represents half of Tullyvars
net assets employed and is broken down as follows:-

2021722
£
Lorg lerm assets 1,549,464 1,625,596
Curren! ase! 440,802 510,591
urrent Labilifias ) (47,412 {83,149}
Tona term obitios {101,860, - {95717}
Net Asseh 1,840,994 | 1,957,321

The movement in Mid Ulster District Council's invesiment in Tullyvar is a decrease of £116,327 (2020/2) £157.919)
which is broken down as follows;

St income 51,670 5Z:.535
Other o - 17,650 | 7517
Totol Income B 45,320 40,452
\Adminisiration Costs B B 35,688 28,750
Operating Costs B 217,547 202.774
Total costs 253,235 231,524 |
Distribution of funds B - -
Revaiuation reserve movement - 59,488 5,053
Landfill Regulation Reserve Movement 8100 8w
Net Movement ] ~ (116,327) | (157.919)




26

27

keialed Porty Transactions

The Council is required fo disclose material fransactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the council. Disclosure of these
transaciions allows recders to assess the extent fo which the councit might have been constrained in its ability o
operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability fo bargain freely with the
council.

The Council also paid grants of £112,035 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Council officers had
an interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

The Council received £11,000 in respect of a management fee from Tullyvar Waste Joint Commitiee.

During 2021/22 the Council made payments of £444,185 to other Councils, and owed £270.314 (see note 17a} at 31
March 2022, and received £328,742 from other Councils and were owed £2,137,193 {see note 15} at 31 March 2022,
These amounts mainly related to services provided.

Prier Yeor Re - stalement

The Council has restated the prior year Comprehensive Income Expenditure Statement and the Balance Sheet for
the period 2020/21 to reflect expenditure (£1.683m) not previously accrued which was incurred in the 2020/21
financial year, together with an associated deblor representing grant funding in the same amount (£1.683m] which
was similarly not accrued in 2020/21

Date of authorisation for issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 29 September 2022
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